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          2                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:  Please stand for the

                     pledge.

          3                       (Pledge of Allegiance)

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:  Thank you.  Ken, the

          4          roll, please?

                            MR. VERSCHOOR:   Mr. Kline?

          5                 MR. KLINE:   Here.

                            MR. VERSCHOOR:   Mr. Bernard?

          6                 MR. BERNARD:   Here.

                            MR. VERSCHOOR:   Mr. Bianchi?

          7                 MR. BIANCHI:   Here.

                            MR. VERSCHOOR:   Mr. Klarl?

          8                 MR. KLARL:   Here.

                            MR. VERSCHOOR:   Mr. Kessler?

          9                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Here.

                            MR. VERSCHOOR:   Miss Taylor?

         10                 MS. TAYLOR:   Here.

                            MR. VERSCHOOR:   Miss Todd?

         11                 MS. TODD:   Here.

                            MR. VERSCHOOR:   Mr. Foley?

         12                 MR. FOLEY:   Here.

                            MR. VERSCHOOR:   Mr. Vergano?

         13                 MR. VERGANO:   Here.

                            MR. VERSCHOOR:   Mr. Kehoe?

         14                 MR. KEHOE:   Here.

                            MR. VERSCHOOR:   Myself, Mr. Verschoor.  From

         15          the CAC I know Peter Daley is here also.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Okay.  Thank you.  We

         16          have two additions to the agenda this evening.  The

                     first is PB number 25-93.  The application of Rocco

         17          Triglia for Roundtop at Montrose.  The second item

                     will be 42-06, Planning Board Number 42-06 regarding

         18          Monteverde.  Could I please have a motion to add

                     those to the agenda under correspondence at the end

         19          of correspondence, letters I and J?

                            MR. BERNARD:   So moved.

         20                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Second?

                            MR. BIANCHI:   Second.

         21                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Thank you.  On the

                     question.  All in favor?

         22                 (Board in favor)

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Opposed?  Could I please

         23          have a motion to approve the minutes from the

                     meetings of August 7th and August 21st?

         24                 MS. TODD:   So moved.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Second?

         25                 MR. KLINE:   Second.
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          2                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Thank you.  On the

                     question.  All in favor?

          3                 (Board in favor)

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Opposed?  Before we get

          4          started, one of the public hearings this evening on

                     the Congregation Yeshiva Ohr Hamier, we have a

          5          letter from the applicant asking -- from the

                     attorney for the applicant asking that we adjourn

          6          this evening's public hearing and pick it up at the

                     next meeting, presumably because they needed some

          7          more time to work on a number of issues, including

                     the sewage treatment issue.  So we will do that, but

          8          since it is a public hearing, those that are here

                     who wish to comment on it are welcome to do so, but

          9          understand that the applicant will not be here this

                     evening so they will not necessarily hear your

         10          comments, they may read about them.  If you would

                     like to wait until the next meeting when we have the

         11          full compliment of the applicant, that will also be

                     appreciated and we will pick it up at our November

         12          7th meeting.  Okay.  The first item this evening is

                     a resolution.  APPLICATION of LUCIANNA & VITO A.

         13          GIANNELLI, JR., AND ARTHUR B. & MICHALINA KAETHER

                     FOR A LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT BETWEEN 2 LOTS LOCATED ON

         14          2 EAST HILL ROAD AND 85 TROLLEY ROAD AS SHOWN ON A

                     DRAWING ENTITLED "LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT PLAT" PREPARED

         15          BY STEPHEN MILLER, PLS, DATED AUGUST 2, 2007.  Miss

                     Todd?

         16                 MS. TODD:   Mr. Chairman, I'd like to make a

                     motion that we approve Resolution Number 46-07

         17          approving the lot line adjustment.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Second please?

         18                 MR. KLINE:   Second.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   On the question.  All in

         19          favor?

                            (Board in favor)

         20                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Opposed?  Next item, also

                     a resolution.  APPLICATION OF MARK GIORDANO, FOR THE

         21          PROPERTY OF WILLIAM P. LUSH, FOR PRELIMINARY PLAT

                     APPROVAL AND WETLAND AND TREE REMOVAL PERMITS FOR A

         22          3-LOT MAJOR SUBDIVISION OF 1.5 ACRES LOCATED ON THE

                     SOUTH SIDE OF KINGS FERRY ROAD, APPROXIMATELY 100

         23          FEET WEST OF TATE AVENUE AS SHOWN ON A 2-PAGE SET OF

                     DRAWINGS ENTITLED "PRELIMINARY PLAT - KINGS FERRY

         24          COMMONS" PREPARED BY RALPH G. MASTROMONACO, P.E.,

                     LATEST REVISION DATED APRIL 19TH, 2007.  Mr.

         25          Steinmetz, good evening.
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          2                 MR. KLARL:   Mr. Chairman, I recuse myself.

                            MR. STEINMETZ:   Good evening, Mr. Chairman,

          3          members of the board.  David Steinmetz of the law

                     firm of Zarin & Steinmetz representing the

          4          applicant.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   For the record, our

          5          counsel is recusing himself from this application.

                            MR. STEINMETZ:   Mr. Chairman, we did attend

          6          the board's work session and listened to your

                     comments and questions.  We spent -- I know your

          7          board spent a fair amount of time discussing the

                     possibility of having a vegetative buffer or

          8          screening area along Kings Ferry Road.  We did

                     consult with Mr. Giordano's engineer prior to the

          9          meeting, and according to Ralph Mastromonaco, there

                     is around 10 feet -- he said maybe 12, between the

         10          property line and the septic area as shown on the

                     plan.  We are certainly prepared to commit to

         11          screening in that area of native hard woods and

                     evergreens.  We would suggest that if we are given

         12          permission to plant as close to the property line as

                     possible that the canopy of some of these trees will

         13          ultimately extend into the municipal right of way

                     and we can basically encompass as much of that 12

         14          feet as reasonably possible.  Unless the town is

                     prepared to authorize Mr. Giordano to plant in the

         15          municipal right of way, which we all know is here,

                     although there is some possibility of a -- I heard

         16          you say a road widening along Kings Ferry, my client

                     is prepared to vegetate that as much as the town

         17          authorizes.  However, I can't obligate a future

                     property owner to keep that municipal right of way

         18          in a vibrant and healthy growing condition.  I can't

                     obligate a property owner to go onto the municipal

         19          right of way and do something.  We are prepared,

                     however, to commit to the preservation and vibrancy

         20          of this private property buffer.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Just so we are clear,

         21          that 10 to 12 feet takes you up to the beginning of

                     the septic?

         22                 MR. STEINMETZ:   That's correct.

                            MS. TODD:   Are there electrical lines by the

         23          roadway in front of the houses?

                            MR. STEINMETZ:   I don't know, Miss Todd.

         24          There are utilities lines.

                            MR. GIORDANO:   Overhead, not on the ground.

         25                 MR. STEINMETZ:   Are you concerned whether
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          2          that might interfere with growing conditions?

                            MS. TODD:   Yeah.

          3                 MR. GIORDANO:   Actually there are yellow

                     Osage trees.

          4                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   You have to talk into the

                     microphone.

          5                 MR. STEINMETZ:   What Mark was saying is that

                     they are indicated on the plan, they are in line

          6          with the Osage orange trees.  They are right near

                     the property boundary.

          7                 MR. BIANCHI:   Question.  I know we talked

                     about this at length at the work session.  On the

          8          3-lot plan, you have 3 houses, the one on the right,

                     extreme right, has a garage where the other ones

          9          don't.  That garage just adds to the bulk of that

                     house.  I could see if I were to consider approval

         10          of the 3-lot plan I probably would not want to see

                     that garage there.  Is it absolutely necessary to

         11          have that garage?  The other 2 houses don't have

                     one.

         12                 MR. GIORDANO:   One of the reasons why we

                     showed the attached garage on that side was the

         13          considering of the adjoining house next door so the

                     house doesn't tower over the adjoining house to the

         14          right, so we moved that over to accomplish that.

                            MR. BIANCHI:   I don't see how adding to the

         15          house over there is going to help that situation.

                     Without the garage that house would be further away

         16          from the other house, physically.

                            MR. GIORDANO:   The way that this property

         17          lays out, the attached garage would be within 2 or 3

                     steps of the first floor which means that the

         18          basement will be buried and you would walk from the

                     garage right into the home with a couple of steps.

         19          If we eliminate the garage, any one of these lots,

                     let's take lot number 3 in particular, then the

         20          house is going to be very high off the ground to

                     have a drive-in garage on the basement level and

         21          that really doesn't fit well.

                            MR. BIANCHI:   They are below.

         22                 MR. STEINMETZ:   Mr. Bianchi, if I can go one

                     step further.  We talked about this at last month's

         23          meeting.  Technically you are not approving house

                     design, specific house location, house size, garage,

         24          no garage.  We have in front of you a subdivision

                     application.  There may not a garage there.  The

         25          house may be potentially a different size, etcetera,
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          2          so we appreciate the comment.  The most important

                     thing to acknowledge is that we, respecting whatever

          3          may ultimately be built there, we have proposed to

                     put a vegetative buffer between our proposed house

          4          and the neighbor which is something that we can

                     commit to do and that can address the concern of the

          5          neighboring property owner.

                            MR. BIANCHI:   But we can require that

          6          there's a certain distance between that house and

                     the following house.  We can't require whether

          7          there's a garage or not just to state --

                     (interrupted)

          8                 MR. STEINMETZ:   You've already done that.

                            MR. BIANCHI:   We can increase that buffer,

          9          if you will, to eliminate that possibility of that

                     garage there if we wanted to create a bigger area

         10          between houses.  Let me summarize what I understand

                     you're saying.  Because of the elevation of that

         11          house, the other 2 houses have a garage, but they

                     are underneath.

         12                 MR. STEINMETZ:   Correct.

                            MR. BIANCHI:   Because the elevation allows

         13          for that.  Here it's lower?

                            MR. GIORDANO:   No, that's not true.  The

         14          reason why we addressed the lot number 3 is because

                     of the adjoining house being so close to the

         15          property line.  We focused on lot number 3 to

                     demonstrate how we achieved something nice on lot

         16          number 3.  The locations on lots number 1 and 2 are

                     just typical, but that might not be the layout.  I

         17          may have attached garages on 1 and 2, I'm not sure.

                     The zoning allows certain distances from the

         18          property line and I will respect that.

                            MR. BIANCHI:   I guess I have a problem with

         19          what you are saying because on the other 2 lots you

                     can build right up to the approved zoning distance,

         20          side yard zoning distance; is that correct?  They

                     can do that, they can go right up to the side yard

         21          setback?

                            MR. FOLEY:   Yeah, it's noted.

         22                 MR. VERGANO:   Again, there's lot coverage

                     requirements, new FAR requirements that were

         23          recently passed by the town board and, of course,

                     that has to be respected.

         24                 MR. STEINMETZ:   Mr. Bianchi, I don't want to

                     get overly philosophical, but every subdivision

         25          application that we bring before you we leave here
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          2          with lots that we have created together and then we

                     go to the building department and we have to follow

          3          the zoning ordinance.  We are never in here showing

                     absolute precise locations of any perimeter of the

          4          structure.

                            MR. BIANCHI:   So there's a review of this

          5          after a building permit is applied for; is that

                     correct?

          6                 MR. VERGANO:   That's correct.

                            MR. BIANCHI:   That's when you would make

          7          that determination?

                            MR. VERGANO:   Yes.

          8                 MR. STEINMETZ:   On a lot by lot basis.

                            MR. BIANCHI:   Another question.  The 3

          9          septics are progressively smaller from left to

                     right.  Why do you have that?

         10                 MR. STEINMETZ:   Ralph can answer that in

                     more detail.  I think it's based upon the size of

         11          the expansion area he's showing on the respective

                     lots.  Am I correct, Ralph?  Your septic area on lot

         12          1 is larger than 2 and larger than 3 in the front.

                     The question is is the flip side, your expansion

         13          area is larger in each kind of -- I mean in a mirror

                     image fashion?  If you could just come up.

         14                 MR. MASTROMONACO:   The septic areas, septic

                     systems are not designed yet.  What we are trying to

         15          do is set aside enough area for the house.  We think

                     it could be in the front, in the back, it could be

         16          in both places.  We are showing where a septic area

                     could go in all cases.  We won't know where that

         17          septic system will be until we have house plans from

                     Mark and an application from the Department of

         18          Health.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   I guess one of the points

         19          before you walked in is talking about the buffer

                     area and we certainly want to preserve in the front

         20          a certain amount of buffer so where the septic goes,

                     the size of the septic becomes important.  At some

         21          future point we don't want to find that the septic

                     is such a size that the buffer become 5 feet rather

         22          than what we find is appropriate this evening.

                            MR. MASTROMONACO:   You can't have a septic

         23          system closer than 10 feet from the property line.

                     That 10 feet could be set aside as a buffer.  It can

         24          never be closer than 10 feet.  It's an area that you

                     could basically use that as a buffer.

         25                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Any further questions?
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          2                       MS. TODD:   I think we just need to add

                     something to condition number 6.  It says right now

          3          provide tree preservation area on the final plat in

                     the front of the proposed lots and for screening on

          4          the west side of proposed lot number 3.  I would

                     like to add something like including the addition of

          5          native trees and evergreens to the satisfaction of

                     D.O.T.S.  Because right now it's just talking about

          6          preserving the existing trees that I think we are

                     going to need to augment that.

          7                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Did you mention a

                     distance?

          8                 MS. TODD:   No.  Provide a 10- to 12-foot

                     tree preservation area.

          9                 MR. STEINMETZ:   That's fine, we would have

                     no objection to that.

         10                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Again, in addition to the

                     right of way?

         11                 MR. STEINMETZ:   Correct.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Beyond the right of way?

         12                 MR. STEINMETZ:   Right.  Entirely within the

                     subject property, on the private property.

         13                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   We would like as much as

                     possible.  I understand 10 is the absolute minimum,

         14          but we would be looking for something more than

                     that?

         15                 MR. STEINMETZ:   You've made that clear.  I

                     know when Mr. Giordano files his application with

         16          D.O.T.S. I know he will be doing that.

                                  MS. TODD:   I think that will help a

         17          lot with the concerns about just appearing like 3

                     giant houses towering over the library.

         18                 MR. BIANCHI:   To that point, I'd like to add

                     to that clause to the satisfaction of the director

         19          of D.O.T.S. on that too.  As it stands it doesn't

                     require any approvals.

         20                 MR. STEINMETZ:   Susan just added that.

                            MS. TODD:   I said the addition to the native

         21          trees and evergreens to the satisfaction.  I called

                     it D.O.T.S.

         22                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Bob?

                            MR. FOLEY:   I was the one that brought up at

         23          the work session after having read this first

                     resolution the addition number 6 here which Susan

         24          has just talked about, and Tom.  I'm pleased with

                     that.  I brought it up in conjunction with condition

         25          number 9 with the possibility of the 5-foot taking
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          2          by the town for road improvements for drainage in

                     the future if that happens.  I'm pleased with that.

          3          I still have reservations about myself voting for a

                     3-lot plan on this.  I think a 2-lot would be

          4          better.  I know, and I appreciate the efforts of Mr.

                     Giordano, I've talked to him.  I know the 2-lot

          5          submitted was in conjunction with the 3, comparison,

                     but based on what Mr. Steinmetz just said a few

          6          minutes ago in reference to answers to Mr. Bianchi's

                     questions, technically we are not approving house

          7          sizes or even septic sizes, and that's why it

                     reinforces my idea that with the 2-lot still more

          8          trees are preserved, more buffer area, more area to

                     work with, etcetera, etcetera, etcetera.

          9          Unfortunately, the formal 2-lot was not presented, I

                     wish it had been.  CAC had submitted a letter, I

         10          guess it was yesterday or today, I don't know if

                     that should be read into the record.  So I still

         11          don't like the 3-lot.  I appreciate everything that

                     has been done by board members, staff and the

         12          applicant.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Any other comments?  If

         13          not, Mr. Bernard?

                            MR. VERGANO:   One other comment.  The

         14          applicant still has to come back for final

                     subdivision approval.  Presumably the applicant will

         15          be making application shortly after he receives

                     final for a building permit.  Will it be possible to

         16          nail down the exact location of the septic field?

                     Maybe it will give you more of a buffer in the

         17          front.  It will give you an opportunity to work with

                     the health department between now and final.  Yes?

         18          Maybe?

                            MR. STEINMETZ:   I'm sorry?

         19                 MR. VERGANO:   You are going to be working

                     with the health department to get an approval for

         20          the septic field for the 3 lots between now and the

                     final, because presumably soon after you get your

         21          final you will be filing your building permit

                     application package which we can't accept until we

         22          have final, final approval from the health

                     department.  During that period if you can try to

         23          move the septic field as much as possible off the

                     right of way you can get more of a buffer area.

         24                 MR. STEINMETZ:   Mr. Mastromonaco certainly

                     will try to refine his design of the septic system.

         25          We can try to refine the design of the vegetative
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          2          buffer.  The Mr. Giordano's point is that the health

                     department will not give its sign off until we have

          3          an approved final plat.

                            MR. VERGANO:   Right.  You can still do some

          4          design work between now and then to get a better

                     idea as to where the exact location of the septic

          5          field can be located.  I'd like to see another 5

                     feet really.

          6                 MR. STEINMETZ:   That's fine.  We can

                     certainly look.  I know you met with Mr. Giordano

          7          and talked about the possibility of trimming the

                     septic area and preserving some trees as a result of

          8          doing so, so we will look into doing that during

                     final review.

          9                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Mr. Bernard?

                            MR. BERNARD:   Mr. Chairman, I move we that

         10          approve Resolution 47-07 with the proposed changes

                     to condition number 6 as stated by board members and

         11          with the additional comments from Mr. Vergano from

                     D.O.T.S.

         12                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Second, please?

                            MR. KLINE:   Second.

         13                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   On the question.

                            MR. FOLEY:   On the question.  To reinforce

         14          what I just said, with further discussion now, it

                     seems like there's some -- still some issues as to

         15          whether this is really going to come out the way

                     some of us are thinking, so I'm still not for it.

         16                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   We are on the question.

                     All in favor?

         17                 (Vote taken)

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Opposed?

         18                 MR. FOLEY:   Opposed.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Ken, for the record?

         19                 MR. STEINMETZ:   Does anyone have a copy of

                     the resolution for the applicant?

         20                 MR. VERSCHOOR:   Yeah, right here.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Poll the board.

         21                 MR. VERSCHOOR:   Mr. Kline?

                            MR. KLINE:   Aye.

         22                 MR. VERSCHOOR:   Mr. Bernard?

                            MR. BERNARD:   Aye.

         23                 MR. VERSCHOOR:   Mr. Bianchi?

                            MR. BIANCHI:   Aye.

         24                 MR. VERSCHOOR:   Mr. Kessler?

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Aye.

         25                 MR. VERSCHOOR:   Miss Taylor?
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          2                 MS. TAYLOR:   Aye.

                            MR. VERSCHOOR:   Miss Todd?

          3                 MS. TODD:   Aye.

                            MR. VERSCHOOR:   Mr. Foley?

          4                 MR. FOLEY:   No.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   6 to 1, thank you.  Okay,

          5          onto the public hearings.  The first one is an

                     adjourned public hearing.  APPLICATION OF YESHIVA

          6          CONGREGATION OHR HAMIER FOR SITE DEVELOPMENT PLAN

                     APPROVAL AND A SPECIAL PERMIT FOR A WETLAND AND TREE

          7          REMOVAL PERMITS FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF A NEW

                     DORMITORY BUILDING WITH A CLASSROOM WING, THE

          8          RENOVATION OR DEMOLITION OF EXISTING BUILDINGS ON

                     THE SITE, AND OTHER RELATED SITE IMPROVEMENTS

          9          INCLUDING IMPROVEMENTS TO THE ACCESS DRIVE, SIGNAGE,

                     LANDSCAPING, UTILITIES, LIGHTING AND A SANITARY

         10          SEWER CONNECTION TO THE RED OAK SEWER DISTRICT

                     LOCATED ON A 37.32 ACRE PARCEL OF PROPERTY AT 141

         11          FURNACE WOODS ROAD AS SHOWN ON A DRAWING ENTITLED

                     "PROPOSED SITE PLAN PREPARED FOR YESHIVA OHR HAMIER"

         12          LATEST REVISION DATED NOVEMBER 22, 2006 PREPARED BY

                     RALPH G. MASTROMONACO, P.E., AND A DRAWING ENTITLED

         13          "PROPOSED RENOVATIONS" PREPARED BY KG&D ARCHITECTS,

                     LATEST REVISION DATED OCTOBER 19, 2006.  As I

         14          mentioned at the start of the meeting, the applicant

                     has asked via correspondence dated September 20th

         15          that we adjourn this to our next meeting as they

                     need more time to pursue alternatives to the sewer

         16          connection.

                            MR. STEINMETZ:   And at the November meeting,

         17          Mr. Chairman, members of the board, we certainly

                     plan on responding to all the questions we got from

         18          the board.  We were in a position to do so

                     substantially tonight, but we didn't want to split

         19          the presentation, we wanted to come back and make a

                     comprehensive presentation on everything, most

         20          particularly concerning the sewer.  We expect to do

                     so at the next meeting.

         21                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Since this is a

                     continuation of the public hearing, is there anybody

         22          that wishes to comment at this time or wait until

                     the November 7th meeting?  Okay.  If there's no

         23          further comment by members of the board, Mr. Foley?

                            MR. FOLEY:   Mr. Chairman, I make a motion we

         24          adjourn this hearing until the November 7th meeting.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Second, please?

         25                 MR. BIANCHI:   Second.
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          2                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   On the question.  All in

                     favor?

          3                 (Board in favor)

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Opposed?  Our next public

          4          hearing, again an adjourned public hearing.

                     APPLICATION OF W. LANCE WICKEL FOR PRELIMINARY PLAT

          5          APPROVAL AND A TREE REMOVAL PERMIT FOR A 3-LOT MAJOR

                     SUBDIVISION OF A 4.59 ACRE PARCEL FOR A PROPOSED

          6          BUILDING LOT FOR PROPERTY LOCATED ON THE EAST SIDE

                     OF LAFAYETTE AVENUE APPROXIMATELY 250 FEET SOUTH OF

          7          GREENLAWN ROAD AS SHOWN ON A 4-PAGE SET OF DRAWINGS

                     ENTITLED "PRELIMINARY SUBDIVISION PLAN FOR W. LANCE

          8          WICKEL" PREPARED BY TIM CRONIN, III, P.E., LATEST

                     REVISION DATED JUNE 27TH, 2007 (SEE PRIOR PB 229).

          9          Good evening.

                            MR. SULLIVAN:   Good evening, Chairman

         10          Kessler, my name is John Sullivan appearing for Mr.

                     Wickel.

         11                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Any opening comments?

                            MR. SULLIVAN:   Since the last time I was

         12          here, I've had an opportunity to meet with staff on

                     2 occasions and have incorporated in the revised

         13          plans, which I believe were dated June 27th and were

                     submitted to the board some time ago, some of the

         14          suggestions that we received from the board.  I did,

                     I believe, summarize those revisions in a letter

         15          that I sent to the board just yesterday.  I've also

                     had an opportunity to look into a question that was

         16          raised regarding a notation on the 1979 subdivision

                     map, the Hassleback subdivision, a part of which is

         17          a property contained in this pending application.

                     Again, I believe I also submitted a summary of that

         18          in my letter dated yesterday, but I was available to

                     address any questions on that point and/or to

         19          summarize the revisions that we made to the plans.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Okay.  I think the board

         20          has some questions, but first, is there anybody in

                     the audience that wishes to comment on this

         21          application?  Comments from the board?  Ivan?

                            MR. KLINE:   Well, I mean we had a discussion

         22          as to the issue that was out there for months, the

                     notation of not a building lot.  I guess putting

         23          aside what the result of that may be, we understand

                     from counsel that I guess the board certainly has

         24          the authority to change that restriction, but I

                     personally have some concerns about whether it's

         25          wise to do so just as a general rule in terms of the
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          2          policy against or the preference against flag lots

                     where it seems we would be creating what I would

          3          call a double flag lot where you would be running a

                     long driveway alongside 2 existing homes to go

          4          behind both of those lots to create another lot,

                     which I personally don't think is the greatest of

          5          planning.  I don't know if there is any alternative

                     to get the same 3-lot count, that's the issue for

          6          me.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Any other comments from

          7          the board?

                            MR. BERNARD:   Just that I would parrot

          8          Ivan's comments.  In the letter we just received in

                     our package tonight, I haven't read the whole thing

          9          and certainly haven't thought about it much.  In the

                     third to last paragraph you say there's nothing in

         10          any of the records mentioned above pertaining to the

                     Hassleback subdivision which would indicate that the

         11          not a building lot notation on parcel B was intended

                     by the planning board at the time in 1979 to prevent

         12          or limit further subdivision or development of that

                     parcel.  It's hard for me to understand why that

         13          notation would have ever been placed on the drawing

                     when I've seen that.  It says very clearly not a

         14          building lot.  If that wasn't the intention, you

                     know, so I'm having a hard time with that.  As I've

         15          said, I've just begun to review this.

                            MR. SULLIVAN:   It appears it was a 2-month

         16          process, the application and approval.  There is

                     certainly nothing in the minutes where a concern was

         17          raised relative to a question of a building lot.

                     There were concerns raised in a somewhat unusual set

         18          of facts in a sense this was an application by Mr.

                     Hassleback at the time of the application was in

         19          contract to sell both of what would be the newly

                     created lots to a Mr. Cohen and then Mr. Cohen,

         20          again prior to the approval and prior to purchasing

                     the 2 lots was already in contract to sell the

         21          parcel B which is the rear lot, which is the one

                     where the not a building lot indication appears.

         22          Mr. Cohen was in contract to sell that to a Mr.

                     Travis who owned adjoining land.  The only way not a

         23          building lot, lot parcel B, not would have access to

                     a public road was if, in fact, the transaction went

         24          through with Mr. Travis and, therefore, Mr. Travis

                     on other land he owned adjacent to this parcel B

         25          would have access to Lafayette Avenue.  There was
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          2          clearly discussion about that point.  It would

                     appear, based upon the memo from the town attorney

          3          at the time who raised this concern about creating

                     this landlocked lot in the first of the 2 meetings,

          4          the minutes of the meetings it's indicated, and then

                     indicated that he wanted to look into it, the town

          5          attorney, and he sent a memorandum essentially

                     saying that he thought the subdivision could be

          6          approved on the condition that that lot did, in

                     fact, get sold to Mr. Travis so there was access to

          7          Lafayette Avenue.  There was no indication on how or

                     why -- on the initial plans there was not the

          8          indication of not a building lot and then between

                     the time that that access question got raised and

          9          the time of the approval the revised subdivision lot

                     has that indication not a building lot.  It

         10          certainly is our position that even at the time it

                     wasn't contemplated to be a building lot because it

         11          was known that there was a contract to sell that

                     land to an adjoining land owner, even if for some

         12          reason not a building lot indication was added,

                     perhaps to make the application more appealing, it

         13          certainly wouldn't run with the land, there was no

                     feeling -- (interrupted)

         14                 MR. BERNARD:   Appealing to whom?

                            MR. SULLIVAN:   Perhaps the board at the time

         15          who was concerned about the access question.  Again,

                     it's not clear from the records.  I've reviewed the

         16          application and the minutes, so we are really left

                     to guess.  That lot is part of what will now be the

         17          proposed new building lot, but there's additional

                     land that is also part of the -- what we are

         18          proposing to be the newly created building lot.

                     Unfortunately the record doesn't speak to why that

         19          indication -- (interrupted)

                            MR. BERNARD:   I've waltzed around the tree

         20          with you and I understand what you are saying and I

                     do believe you with the exception that somebody did

         21          mark on the drawing that it was a lot not to be

                     built on.  To say then that there was no reason for

         22          that, that kind of flies in the face of the evidence

                     that is marked on the drawing.  The property lines

         23          are marked on the drawing.  Are we to pretend that

                     those doesn't exist?

         24                 MR. SULLIVAN:   The record is -- there's just

                     no reason -- (interrupted)

         25                 MR. BERNARD:   The only thing we find in the

          1                        PB 9-06 W. LANCE WICKEL                  15

          2          records is the drawing with the notation.  I agree

                     with you about that.  So I don't know from here

          3          where we go.  As I say, this information just came

                     to us tonight.

          4                 MR. KLINE:   Mr. Hassleback filed the map with

                     that notation?

          5                 MR. SULLIVAN:   Correct.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Any other comments?  If

          6          not, we will review your correspondence and adjourn

                     this public hearing to our next meeting in November

          7          and we will revisit this again.  If there's no

                     objection, Mr. Bianchi?

          8                 MR. BIANCHI:   Mr. Chairman, I'll move to

                     adjourn this public hearing to November.

          9                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Second, please?

                            MS. TODD:   Second.

         10                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   On the question.  All in

                     favor?

         11                 (Board in favor)

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Opposed?  Thank you.  Our

         12          next public hearing again, adjourned public hearing.

                     APPLICATION OF RICHARD HEINZER FOR PRELIMINARY PLAT

         13          APPROVAL AND FOR STEEP SLOPE AND TREE REMOVAL

                     PERMITS FOR A 2-LOT MINOR SUBDIVISION OF A 39,480

         14          SQUARE FOOT PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED ON THE EAST SIDE

                     OF CRUMB PLACE APPROXIMATELY 200 FEET SOUTH OF OGDEN

         15          AVENUE, AS SHOWN ON A 4-PAGE SET OF DRAWINGS

                     ENTITLED "SITE PLAN PREPARED FOR RICHARD HEINZER"

         16          PREPARED BY RALPH G. MASTROMONACO, P.E., LATEST

                     REVISION DATED AUGUST 15, 2007 AND ON A 3-PAGE SET

         17          OF DRAWINGS ENTITLED "PROPOSED SITE CONDITIONS PLAN"

                     PREPARED BY JAMES DeLALIA, RLA, DATED AUGUST 22,

         18          2007.  Mr. Steinmetz, good evening, again.

                            MR. STEINMETZ:   Good evening, Mr. Chairman,

         19          members of the board, David Steinmetz from the law

                     of Zarin & Steinmetz representing the applicant.  We

         20          submitted to you a submission letter attempting to

                     provide detailed responses to the comments that we

         21          received primarily from the neighbors, some comments

                     from the board as well.  We attempted to provide

         22          with you a written response so that you could see

                     where we felt this application was going, how we

         23          felt we could address the concerns and mitigate the

                     impacts.  We believe you have before you an as of

         24          right approvable 2-lot subdivision.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Is there anybody from the

         25          audience that wishes to comment on this application?
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          2          Yes, sir, name and address for the record?

                            MR. GREVIN:   Good evening, Mr. Chairman,

          3          members of the board, ladies and gentlemen, my name

                     is Fred Grevin.  I live at 29 Taylor Avenue.  And

          4          not having seen Mr. Steinmetz's letter, I would be

                     curious to hear a little more from him or from the

          5          town engineer as to how he proposed to remedy our

                     objections from the last hearing, which to recap

          6          briefly had to do with drainage, wildlife, wood

                     lands, steep slopes.  Also the fact that Mr. Felix

          7          Graham whose property is adjacent to the area to be

                     built on has still not as of yesterday received a

          8          notification of these hearings.  Looking at the

                     drawings, I note that the Croton -- one of the

          9          aqueducts, I think it's the Catskill Aqueduct is

                     very, very close by.  We do have a concern which was

         10          raised last time about blasting and, I believe, Mr.

                     Steinmetz said there would be no blasting, but there

         11          are for those of you who have seen the property,

                     there are some very large boulders there and we

         12          would be curious shall we say how these boulders are

                     to be removed if they are planning to be removed and

         13          how that would affect the aqueduct, and by the way,

                     as far as I know that does supply the Town of

         14          Cortlandt with water, drinking water, and also any

                     measures that the structures would take to avoid

         15          rocks rolling down on the properties down below

                     which have children living there.  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Thank you.  Anybody else

                     wish to comment on this application?  Yes, sir.

         17                 MR. DEFABIO:   Good evening members of the

                     board, staff, staff members.  My name is Mike

         18          DeFabio.  I live at 47 Crumb Place, the property

                     right to the left.  I keep bringing up the same

         19          issues here with the blasting.  I just heard that

                     there is not going to be any blasting now.  There

         20          are big boulders in there and I don't know how they

                     are going to remove these big boulders without

         21          blasting.  The blasting, I don't know, it might

                     affect my property because I live at the top of the

         22          slope over there so I don't know if the slope is

                     going to shift a little bit or the foundation of my

         23          house will somehow crack or whatever.  Another thing

                     is the snow storage area, I note you guys are

         24          planning on putting it on the right of way, but

                     actually over there it's all dirt so I don't know

         25          how in the world -- are you guys planning on putting
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          2          up a wall?  I see some stuff on your drawing here, I

                     don't know.  Are you putting up a wall there for

          3          snow removal?

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   They don't have to

          4          respond directly.

                            MR. DEFABIO:   Oh, okay.

          5                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   We will make them respond

                     at the appropriate time.

          6                 MR. DEFABIO:   I see an area where the snow

                     is supposed to be put, but there's all dirt in that

          7          area.  There's a tree over there, right where the

                     slope is, the roots are exposed more or less, so if

          8          they are going to throw snow on top of it or build

                     something on top of it, I don't know if they are

          9          going to harm that tree.  The proposed water valves,

                     I'll bring it up again, where they are right near my

         10          sewer drainage  I was just wondering if there is a

                     more level accessway to come into the property?  I'm

         11          also concerned about snow removal from the driveways

                     here of these 2 houses, if they are going to build 2

         12          houses on them.  Where are they going to put the

                     snow, are they going to put it on their property or

         13          are they going to push it up to where the snow

                     storage area is?  That will just put more snow up

         14          there.  I'm concerned also about when it snows if

                     the property owners at that time will actually park

         15          their vehicles on Crumb Place which will block the

                     snowplow from removing snow in front of my house if

         16          they decide to put the cars up instead of leaving

                     them in their driveway because then they will have

         17          to plow the snow out.  That's it.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Thank you.

         18                 MR. REED:   Good evening, members of the

                     board.  My name is Bob Reed, I live at 39 Ogden

         19          Avenue.  First of all, thank you for the job you

                     guys do.  I know you don't get much thanks for it.

         20          I wasn't here back in September, so I missed the

                     changes to these plans.  I just wanted to do a quick

         21          recap of what I said back in February.  As a

                     preclude to that, none of the neighbors that I know

         22          of have been talked to with any remedies, they are

                     not privileged to these letters that has been

         23          provided to the board.  Mr. Graham who lives right

                     here still hasn't received any notification and

         24          that's where the easement is supposed to be taken

                     for drainage.  He wasn't able to attend tonight

         25          because of work commitments.  I'm going to start a
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          2          little different angle.  I just want to be quick.

                     My major concern with this development isn't to stop

          3          Mr. Heinzer, but to make it a safe, environmentally

                     sound for the Town of Cortlandt.  That's the reason

          4          I'm here.  Just go back a ways to February actually.

                     According to our own codes, I think it's Chapter

          5          259, wetlands, adjacent to steep slopes, the steep

                     slopes, I believe, are right here on this map.  Just

          6          below that is wetlands.  The aquapressure does

                     affect the people in Shipley Park which is on the

          7          other side of this swampy area.  This swampy area is

                     an estuary to a green lands area behind Shipley

          8          Park.  I haven't heard anything mentioned about

                     wetlands at all and the effect of steep slopes onto

          9          that wetland.  I see this driveway coming down, last

                     time I heard is going to be a wall built up.  It's a

         10          downward slope off of Crumb Place which is going to

                     create a natural flow funneling into this estuary

         11          down here and I don't see how in solution is going

                     to do it.  I heard in last month's meeting there's

         12          going to be plantings between the walls here.

                     That's about a 5-foot distance in between.  Probably

         13          with tap rooted trees that are going to be loaded

                     with salt coming off this road, those trees are

         14          going to probably die within the first year, so I

                     don't know what those trees are meant to do other

         15          than to look aesthetically pleasing for the first

                     six months.  Also environmentally, whole area right

         16          now -- approximately right here on the map, I

                     believe, is the tallest tree slated to be taken

         17          down, that's the home to the Red Tail Hawks that has

                     been there for about 5 or 6 years.  We have a Red

         18          Tail Fox that traverses down along here, it cuts

                     across all the properties for the last 3 or 4 years.

         19          I've walked this property.  I know there are areas

                     where there are deer nestings, raccoons, down in the

         20          stream down below the steep slopes I personally put

                     back a turtle that was climbing up onto the road by

         21          Taylor Avenue last week, a 5 by 8 yellow belly,

                     dream cop, I don't know what kind of turtle.  It was

         22          pretty.  There was also tad poles, frogs and

                     everything else down that waterway.  What effect is

         23          creating a funnel going down this driveway going to

                     have on that waterway?  We have also mentioned

         24          drainage.  I don't know if the drainage has been

                     changed.  I have to count on our engineers for that.

         25          I've been told that dry walls were good enough for
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          2          average rainfall, not for substantial.  Being on a

                     steep slope, above wetlands we have to consider

          3          those drainage bids.  When looking back at the

                     actual permits, I'm confused.  It says 200 feet

          4          south of Ogden Avenue.  There's 5 property lines

                     between Ogden Avenue and this property.  I'm sure it

          5          has to be 500 feet.  I'm sure you have a survey.  I

                     don't know where this 200 feet came from.  On the

          6          top of the permit it says the closest school is Blue

                     Mountain which isn't our school district, it's

          7          Lakeland.  The closest school would be Lincoln

                     Titus.  If you consider the yeshiva a school, that

          8          is the closest school.  So I don't know how correct

                     these things have to be or do they just get brushed

          9          under the table.  Even the due diligence on

                     notifying Mr. Graham.  No neighbors have been talked

         10          to.  The snow removal is a nightmare.  I talked to

                     Ed about that at the meeting the last time.  You

         11          can't turn a snowplow around in that dead end.  If

                     you have a wall there you probably want to make some

         12          means of plowing off the end of the street because

                     that plow is not going to turn around and he's

         13          probably going to be in somebody's front yard.  Do

                     we have an aerial shot we can put up there?  No.

         14          You can see how steep these slopes are, the wetlands

                     adjacent.  It's also steep just below this wall.

         15          That's also a need for the retaining wall.  Water is

                     going to be coming down this road inside this

         16          driveway, you have a wall and the water is going to

                     divert into the backyard to these 2 houses.  It's

         17          already being done through the filtration of land,

                     but that's going to change with the driveway.  It's

         18          going to be flowing into these people's back yards.

                     I don't think this wall is going to contain that and

         19          if it does it's going to add any kind of chemicals

                     we put down for snow removal because that is a very

         20          hilly area.  There's one other subject I want to

                     cover, so let me just get my thoughts for a second.

         21          I would like to see the board or somebody contact

                     the neighbors and tell us what these resolutions

         22          are.  If you talk to the neighbors, we would like to

                     know who they are because they don't live in our

         23          neighborhood.  It would be nice to know who they

                     are.  It's kind of strange.  Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   All the correspondence

                     that we receive you can go to the planning department

         25          and they will share with you the letters that we
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          2          received.  The issue of notification seems to come

                     up at every meeting.  Could we for the record once

          3          and for all, not tonight, make sure all the

                     neighbors have been given appropriate notification

          4          so we can close out that issue?

                            MR. VERGANO:   You said Mr. Graham was not

          5          notified?

                            MR. REED:   He claims no one ever talked to

          6          him about it.  As a matter of fact, the only person

                     most of the neighbors have talked to is Mr. Ken

          7          Verschoor.

                            MR. KLINE:   There's a difference between not

          8          being notified -- nobody is obligated to go and talk

                     to them.  It's a question of whether he got a

          9          written notice.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   The only requirement is

         10          that there's a written letter going to the adjoining

                     property owners notifying them of the application.

         11                 MR. REED:   I realize that.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   And the applicant, it is

         12          their responsibility to do that and give proof to

                     staff that they have done so.

         13                 MR. REED:   So it's the applicant's due

                     diligence then.

         14                 MR. VERGANO:   We do have an affidavit that

                     Mr. Graham was notified, was served.

         15                 MR. REED:   Oh really, he doesn't seem to

                     remember it then.  Okay, thank you.

         16                 MR. FOLEY:   What does the affidavit say when

                     he was served, when he was notified?  What date?

         17                 MR. VERSCHOOR:   The 23rd day of January of

                     '07, that's when -- this public hearing was first

         18          opened in February and the notices went out in

                     January.

         19                 MR. FOLEY:   So he has to sign receipt?

                            MR. VERSCHOOR:   No, it's First Class mail.

         20                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Okay.  Thank you.

                            MR. REED:   Can I bring up one other subject?

         21                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Sure.

                            MR. REED:   This is very critical on my mind.

         22          I don't want to stop Mr. Heinzer from building.

                     That's not my intent.  My intent is to be safe.  I

         23          haven't heard anything about geological study for

                     this property.  I don't know how sound that rock is

         24          up there.  I know from past experience in the Town

                     of Cortlandt, Bob Lena built the expressway loop on

         25          Route 6, he didn't want to blast so he power drilled
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          2          for like 2 months and almost went bankrupt doing

                     that.  I'm sure Mr. Heinzer doesn't want to do that.

          3          We also know that when we built Jacobs Hill we had

                     some problems next door with buildings during

          4          blasting.  We had buildings and pieces almost

                     sliding down the hill.  I think there should be some

          5          type of geological study, not only to protect that

                     steep slope, but to protect Mr. Heinzer's

          6          investment.  That's what I want to point out.

                            MR. VERGANO:   For the record, all the points

          7          that the resident brings out are, of course, valid

                     and are the subject of our reviews.  Again, it's an

          8          interactive process between the reviewing

                     authorities, which in this case would be my office

          9          and the applicant's engineer and a lot of these

                     issues, of course, have not been brought to closure

         10          yet.  We are still very concerned about potential

                     erosion problems as you had noted, building on a

         11          steep slope, building in the proximity of a wetland.

                     Those are issues that need to be looked at a little

         12          bit closer, and as I said, there will be more

                     changes to the plan.

         13                 MR. REED:   The wetlands adjacent to the

                     property, it's an obligation to include them in the

         14          application?

                            MR. VERGANO:   I don't believe it is

         15          included.

                            MR. VERSCHOOR:   Perhaps the applicant can

         16          address that question because they did so in the

                     correspondence that we received tonight.

         17                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   And just for the record,

                     we did receive a letter dated September 24th from

         18          Mr. Steinmetz, and included with that letter was a

                     drainage and hydrology report prepared by Ralph

         19          Mastromonaco which staff, of course, will now have

                     to go back and review and see if they have any

         20          issues with those 2 issues.

                            MR. STEINMETZ:   Mr. Chairman, I think Ken

         21          wants me to address that so I will do so.  We

                     indicated in our letter of September 24th that there

         22          is apparently a drainage corridor, that according to

                     empirical data, is no closer than 165 feet from the

         23          subject property at its closest point, and given

                     that a town regulated wetlands permit is not

         24          required for this 2-lot subdivision.  If the town's

                     staff has some data that we are unaware of, prior to

         25          this point I don't believe the town has ever
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          2          indicated to Mr. Heinzer or to our development team

                     that there was some deficiency in the application.

          3                 MR. VERGANO:   We can certainly send our

                     in-house wetland monitor to evaluate that.

          4          According to the data we have, it appears all

                     disturbances are outside of the 100-foot buffer that

          5          would not require wetland permit.

                            MR. STEINMETZ:   Correct.  I think, in fact,

          6          a physical inspection will reveal some of the

                     neighboring properties may have encroached into the

          7          buffer area.  That may be where there has been

                     disturbance in the wetland and buffer.  This

          8          application does not have anything to do with

                     wetlands.

          9                 MS. TODD:   I would like to know what the

                     elevation difference is between where the

         10          applicant's property is on the southern side and the

                     wetlands, just to get a sense of how steep the slope

         11          is between the property.

                            MR. REED:   Just for clarification, wetlands

         12          buffer, is that 100 feet from the steep slopes or

                     from the property?

         13                 MR. VERGANO:   That's a hundred feet from any

                     designated wetland or stream.

         14                 MR. REED:   And you will measure that?

                            MR. VERGANO:   Yeah, we can evaluate that.

         15                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Thank you.  Any other

                     comments from the audience?  Sure, come up.

         16                 MR. MIRA:   Members of the board, my name is

                     Mohan Mira.  I live on the other side on John Dorsey

         17          Drive which is on the down side of this property,

                     way down.  At one of the public hearings, I forget

         18          when, I did talk about the possible impact of

                     disturbing this very steep slope on the down side

         19          and the wetlands, for example, behind my house.

                     There's a stream that runs from wetlands behind 16

         20          John Dorsey underneath John Dorsey on the other side

                     towards this surrounding this property, I can't

         21          point it out on this map, this is not big enough.

                     I'm concerned about that stream in the spring, it

         22          rises almost to a level of 2 to 3 feet in the back.

                     In the back of my property you can't walk on it

         23          because of the water that emerges, so I'm very

                     concerned about any disturbance that this will

         24          create either through rock blasting or whatever to

                     create any problems on that stream.  That could be

         25          disastrous for John Dorsey, all the 4 homes on the
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          2          cul-de-sac.  I'm one of the houses on the

                     cul-de-sac.  The other neighbors, I don't know if

          3          they are here today, but I did inform them of the

                     hearing tonight.  So that is a major concern on the

          4          down side of this property, so I would urge you to

                     take a hard look at the possible impact, not just on

          5          Crumb, but on the down side given the nature of the

                     topography of this whole area.  The only other thing

          6          I would reiterate is what this other gentleman said.

                     The wildlife, there's a deer path that runs right

          7          through this in the back of the 2 houses of 16 John.

                     We are constantly dealing with that in our own way

          8          as residents.  I think that any disturbance of the

                     wildlife is something we should take very seriously.

          9          My only point is we need to be cognizant of how this

                     land is disturbed, whether it's blasted or not, the

         10          impact it could have on the stream that runs

                     underneath John Dorsey and behind the 2 homes and

         11          what it can cause in terms of backing up in the

                     springtime when the water level rises.  Thank you.

         12                 MR. FISCHER:   Good evening, Mr. Kessler,

                     Andrew Fischer for the record.  Can the town ask for

         13          some type of a bond or security about a couple of

                     things, the sewage that they are proposing for this?

         14          The sewer ejector pumps are typically made for a

                     single bathroom application and not for handling all

         15          of the sewage for an entire house and my

                     understanding is the financial responsibility of

         16          this rests on the homeowner and these systems are

                     just not made to handle the waste of an entire house

         17          for the entire lifetime of a house and those of us

                     that live downhill from the property are going to be

         18          severely impacted if there's a failure of this

                     device that's really not made to handle an entire

         19          house.  It's one thing to say it's going to be

                     working on the day the construction is finished when

         20          a C of O is issued, but who is going to pay for the

                     repairs and maintenance of this which could be

         21          several thousand dollars a few years down the road

                     if that homeowner turns out to be irresponsible?

         22          It's not like a sewage treatment plant that you

                     often get with a subdivision where they meet certain

         23          engineering standards that the town looks at or

                     D.E.C. looks at.  These are very small scale

         24          systems.  That's one concern.  I'm wondering if

                     there is some way you can hold escrow or security

         25          about that?  Another thing is whether on an
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          2          application of this size with 2 houses if there is

                     any way to look at the visual impacts of this from

          3          the view of John Dorsey and Douglas Mulberry Road is

                     a completely covered hill right now, and because of

          4          the steepness of these 2 properties it's going to

                     create 2 big gray roofs sticking out the middle of a

          5          green mountain.  We have no diagrams showing a side

                     view of this other than of the houses themselves, so

          6          there is nothing of the -- nothing in the

                     application showing the whole lot with its adjoining

          7          properties and how these roof tops -- how the houses

                     would appear from a distance.  I don't know if

          8          there's a way they can do that for the board and us

                     to look at before you make a decision, but that

          9          would be appreciated.  It's a big visual impact.

                     Another thing is as Mr. Mira had mentioned, the

         10          stream downhill from this which is near McGregor

                     Brook, the culvert that goes under John Dorsey does

         11          sometimes clog.  The town has had to come out.  A

                     couple of times in the 3 years I've been there to

         12          clear it out, it has been clogged, there have been

                     some issues.  I feel with this property the runoff

         13          is really going to really pick up a head of steam

                     now because there's a lot of impervious surface

         14          being added and that's going to mean more

                     maintenance costs for the town.  It's a question of

         15          whether these -- is that supposed to come out of

                     general taxes or can a specific applicant or

         16          homeowner be levied something to shoulder their fair

                     share of the maintenance cost.  And then one other

         17          thing is if you can maybe specifically ask the

                     highway department to address snow removal and where

         18          would they, in fact, put the snow, if they can

                     specifically since they have their highway

         19          department foremen look at the proposed plan and see

                     if they really can put that snow in the little

         20          designated snow removal area that's on there now.

                     It doesn't seem to be realistic to me.  I don't see

         21          why we should have any sense of obligation to

                     granting a steep slope permit when there are so many

         22          impacts not being addressed with this.  Thank you.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Thank you.  Any further

         23          comments?  Yes, sir.

                            MR. GREVIN:   Nick Grevin again.  Thank you

         24          for letting me come back, Mr. Chairman.  I just

                     wanted to pick up on the comment about the hundred

         25          foot buffer zone.  I had a question for the board.
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          2          How meaningful is a hundred foot buffer zone when

                     the slope is so steep?  It sounds to me you could

          3          have a 120-foot cliff and but that's your buffer

                     zone, but the water still goes straight down into

          4          the wetlands.  That's my one question.  It sounds to

                     me, maybe this is possibly, that the town to engage

          5          the services of an ecological engineer to come in

                     and do from the town's independent perspective a

          6          review of these various ecological issues, not just

                     one issue, one issue, one issue, that kind of thing,

          7          pull it together.  Finally, Mrs. Zina, who is

                     sitting there, pointed out to me -- her property is

          8          behind this one, below this one, so in effect it

                     would be down below here.  I think that is beyond

          9          the edge of the drawing.  She has a sewer line

                     running from Crumb Place down through this lot to

         10          her property, and this sewer line apparently doesn't

                     show on any of these drawings.  I'm wondering if

         11          there's an obligation on the part of the applicant

                     to ensure are accuracy in this area, number 1, but

         12          number 2, what will the effect of all this

                     construction area around here be on that sewer line?

         13          Thank you very much for your patience.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Any further comments?  If

         14          not, comments from the board?

                            MR. KLINE:   I continue to have severe doubts

         15          that this is really properly approvable for a -- the

                     necessary slopes permit.  I think the response to

         16          the last gentleman's question about what do you do

                     where you have such a steep slope near the wetland?

         17          I think the remedy that the town's ordinance provide

                     us is the slopes ordinance and not the wetlands

         18          ordinance.  I don't think you can really make a case

                     that you are entitled to the seep slopes permit to

         19          allow for the construction of 2 homes as compared to

                     constructing one home going in an application

         20          through the building department.

                            MR. STEINMETZ:   Mr. Kline, at any time you

         21          or the town's staff have some technical empirical

                     that you can supply that Mr. Mastromonaco has not

         22          adequately mitigated the impacts associated with the

                     disturbance of the slope, we are happy to entertain

         23          that and see if there is something we missed.  We

                     believe that his analysis shows that there is no

         24          significant, if any, difference between the 2-lot

                     and 1-lot analysis.  That's why we did that type of

         25          analysis.  Moreover, he believes there is no water
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          2          being improperly diverted into adjacent properties

                     or improperly distributed into the wetlands.  If

          3          there is something that we have done incorrectly

                     from an engineering standpoint, from a grading

          4          standpoint, from a wetland management standpoint, we

                     need to know that because we haven't heard that from

          5          staff and we are very mindful of the neighbors'

                     comments.  That's why we put in a written

          6          submission, Mr. Kline, trying to address everything.

                     If we haven't adequately addressed Mr. DeFabio's

          7          comments about snow plowing, we are ready to do so.

                     In fact, we tried to propose a way to deal with

          8          that.  If we haven't adequately dealt with the

                     aesthetics and the visual impact of the walls,

          9          again, we have a landscape architect and he's here

                     tonight to answer any questions that you all have.

         10                 MR. KLINE:   We have an ordinance that says

                     you have to show the proposed activity constitutes

         11          the minimum disturbance to steep slopes necessary to

                     allow the property owner a reasonable use of the

         12          property.  It doesn't say only if the town has

                     evidence that going beyond that minimum disturbance

         13          necessary will itself cause some catastrophic

                     problems.

         14                 MR. STEINMETZ:    Let's break that down.  Let

                     me -- (interrupted)

         15                 MR. KLINE:   Can I continue?  You've

                     presented a plan that puts the one house in a

         16          convenient location for you to do your analysis of

                     the one house versus the 2 houses.  As a matter of

         17          common senses looking at your plan, if you look at

                     the second page where the slopes analysis is, when

         18          you go from 2 homes to one, instead of putting a

                     nice big home in the middle as you did, you simply

         19          eliminate the second home, just looking at where the

                     slopes disturbance is, you will reduce the slope

         20          disturbance, and you will reduce it in the area that

                     is closest to the area of concern, that leading down

         21          towards the wetlands area.  So you can't really say

                     that 2 houses has no more slope impact than one.

         22          Yes, you can draw a plan that demonstrates that.

                     You can take the first house and pull it in closer

         23          and reduce the driveway and eliminate it further.

                            MR. STEINMETZ:   Let's go back to the

         24          predicate of your question.  That's why I tried to

                     stop you in the beginning.  You started with the

         25          concept of reasonable use of the property which was
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          2          the predicate of your question which is the

                     predicate of the steep slopes ordinance.  The slopes

          3          ordinance allows reasonable use of property.  When

                     you got to your driveway the day you closed, there

          4          was a single driveway leading to your home and you

                     knew that one driveway would take you to your one

          5          home.  When you got to that same property, Mr.

                     Kline, you had a single tap for a single sewer

          6          connection and you knew you were going to be able to

                     connect your sewer to your home and have a viable

          7          house.  When my client purchased this property there

                     were 2 sewer taps specifically carved out on Crumb

          8          Place for this property.  I don't know if that's

                     been stated for the record.  I came into this

          9          application a little bit late.  I want to make sure

                     everybody knows, Mr. Vergano, please correct me if

         10          I'm wrong, I'm not an engineer, I don't know what's

                     beneath the ground.  However, I'm told that there

         11          are 2 sewer taps there for physical connection.

                     When my client came to this property, he actually

         12          visited town hall before he closed.  He had a

                     discussion about the possible reasonable use of this

         13          property.  It meets lot area.  It's got 2 sewer taps

                     and he's got engineering data that, in fact, he's

         14          got the least amount of impact.  Mr. Mastromonaco is

                     here, if anybody has a question of whether there are

         15          ways that he can reduce the slope impact, please be

                     my guest, because he spent a lot of time, and my

         16          client's money and a lot of effort trying to reduce

                     those impacts.  The whole reason, Mr. Kline, at my

         17          urging, my client submitted this comparative chart

                     is because they have been processing an application

         18          for about a year for slopes permit for a 2-lot as of

                     right conforming subdivision.  I said to them, you

         19          know what, you put one house on this property, you

                     don't have to go to the planning board, you go

         20          straight into the building department and you can

                     grade out this property.  In fact, I learned from

         21          Mr. Mastromonaco that some of the impacts associated

                     with that actually could be more significant.  Now,

         22          again, you want to question him, he's here for that

                     specific reason, but the reason we did that is to

         23          show you it seems a little backwards for you to say

                     well, we are not going to take into account what the

         24          impacts are for a single lot because your whole

                     purpose is looking at reasonable use.  Your whole

         25          purpose is looking at public health safety and
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          2          general welfare.  I think what we tried to show, and

                     if we haven't done it well, tell me, tell my

          3          engineer, tell my client, we tried to show that we

                     actually have mitigated those impacts.  We have

          4          sufficient property for 2 lots.  I know you wish we

                     weren't building it.  I know you go out there and

          5          say my God, that property is going to require a lot

                     of earth movement.  It's going to require a lot of

          6          earth movement whether we build one house or 2.  The

                     issue is we have property rights.  We have 2 sewer

          7          connections.  Can the government stop us from making

                     use of those 2 sewer connections?

          8                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Let's take this one at a

                     time.  The sewer connections obviously was just some

          9          good planning way back when.  That in itself doesn't

                     grant - (interrupted)

         10                 MR. STEINMETZ:   We agree on the good

                     planning, Mr. Chairman.

         11                 MR. BERNARD:   Wait a minute.  Good planning

                     at a time when towns wanted maximum buildout.

         12          That's one house on every possibility of every lot.

                     That's a lot different than our status right now.

         13                 MR. STEINMETZ:  John, do you know when they

                     were built?  With all due respect, I know you would

         14          love to take me on this issue, I know you want to.

                     Do you know when they were built?  Ralph, when were

         15          they built?

                            (Off microphone conversation)

         16                 MR. STEINMETZ:  They were built within the

                     last decade.  They were built after ZORP.  They were

         17          built when we were here in the '80s dealing with a

                     lot of subdivisions where we were all worried about

         18          environmental impacts.  They were instructed by the

                     Town of Cortlandt at a time when we all knew what

         19          slopes were, what wetlands were, what reasonable

                     development was.

         20                 MR. BERNARD:   Instructed maybe 10 years ago,

                     okay, I'll buy that, but under a plan that was

         21          developed probably 20 years ago, 25 years ago by an

                     engineer who was during that time an engineer of

         22          record who liked maximum buildout because that was

                     what the town -- the towns were after at that time.

         23                 MR. VERGANO:   Very simply.  The second tap

                     was installed if a second lot was approved.  It

         24          certainly doesn't obligate the town to create a

                     second lot.  It was simply good planning on the part

         25          of the engineer that put the plans together.  Again,
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          2          it doesn't require us to rip up the road in the

                     event a second lot is approved.

          3                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Let's try this again.

                     First of all, have you contacted the town to see if

          4          your snow removal is adequate?

                            MR. STEINMETZ:  I haven't.  Ralph, you want

          5          to address snow removal, please?

                            MR. MASTROMONACO:   It's a town road.  The

          6          town has to plow the road.  Whether there's houses

                     there or not, they still have an issue with snow

          7          removal.  You are going to improve that because we

                     are giving them a place now to legally store that

          8          snow.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   It would be nice to have

          9          some commentary on that.  That would be helpful for

                     the record.  I hate to put our town engineer on the

         10          spot, I guess, I don't expect an answer tonight, if

                     this were to come back as a single building lot,

         11          would the town, you specifically, approve this as a

                     single lot?  We are sitting here grappling over one

         12          lot, 2 lots and the premise that you said all along

                     as of right you can go into the building department

         13          and put up one home and it would be approved.  Well,

                     I'm not so sure that premise is correct because I'm

         14          not so sure given all the issues that exist on this

                     site whether the town engineer would approve a

         15          single building lot.

                            MR. STEINMETZ:   You can ask.  We never heard

         16          anything, Mr. Chairman, of any data whatsoever that

                     the town engineer, D.O.T.S. in general had any

         17          technical opposition to -- (interrupted)

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   We also have a hydrology

         18          report that you have given us to review.  There's

                     still some additional pieces of information that we

         19          are receiving to come to a conclusion.  You are

                     prejudging the conclusion.  We haven't analyzed --

         20          the staff, experts haven't analyzed all the data to

                     come to the same conclusion you've already reached.

         21                 MR. STEINMETZ:   We want you to analyze it.

                     We have fully understand you have every right to

         22          analyze it.  I would have hoped by now you would

                     have.  If there is stuff you need from us, time you

         23          need, please let us know.  My clients, with all due

                     respect, have been very patient on this 2-lot

         24          subdivision.  They have really tried.  The reason we

                     adjourned for several months was to do this

         25          comparative analysis so Ralph could explain to you
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          2          what would be involved in a one-lot versus a 2-lot.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   The report came in 8 days

          3          ago also.

                            MR. STEINMETZ:   That report came in 6 weeks

          4          ago.  There was some modification that we submitted.

                            MR. KLINE:   I'm not sure if one lot is

          5          approvable, but I suspect if it is, that Ed could

                     come up with a way that it would be done with a lot

          6          less slope disturbance than your 2 lots.

                            MR. VERGANO:   That is true.  Again, I don't

          7          know if one lot would be approvable, but clearly as

                     you had stated, Mr. Kline earlier, that the criteria

          8          for one lot would be different than -- which we have

                     as of right would be different than for a second

          9          proposed lot.  The answer to the question is I don't

                     know right now.  I suspect it would be in some form.

         10                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Any other comments from

                     the board?  Mr. Foley?

         11                 MR. FOLEY:   Mr. Steinmetz's September 24th

                     letter, the report was September 20th, not 6 weeks

         12          ago if we are talking about the same report.  Again,

                     you seem to be assuring us that there wouldn't be

         13          any blasting because people have brought it up and

                     the tenuous nature of the terrain.  There's a

         14          concern.  Again at the same time you are saying no

                     blasting is expected to occur and then you go on to

         15          say blasting must occur and you have your proviso.

                            MR. STEINMETZ:  That's definitely what it

         16          says.

                            MR. FOLEY:   I'm not sure you elude to the

         17          explosives of blasting section of the town code

                     which I have a little bit of an issue with.  That's

         18          why I brought that up with other subdivisions in the

                     past.

         19                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Thank you.  Any other

                     comments?

         20                 MS. TAYLOR:   I just wanted to put out, you

                     know, on the table that the fact that I think the

         21          use of the word reasonable is something we all have

                     to think about.  I don't necessarily agree that 2

         22          houses on this particular property is reasonable.  I

                     think that just because -- I think I said this to

         23          Ralph in previous applications, just because you can

                     do something doesn't necessarily mean that you

         24          should, so while he can engineer something that he

                     thinks will be okay, I'm not so certain that that is

         25          necessarily true when you consider especially in
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          2          this instance all the various issues that have been

                     brought to bear on this particular application.

          3          First of all, I think you may need to sort of back

                     away from this thought that just because Ralph can

          4          do it means that we should automatically gravitate

                     to this 2-house situation.  I would be hard pressed

          5          to even vote for one.  I'm not inclined at all to

                     vote for 2.  I just want to put that out there.

          6                 MR. STEINMETZ:   Any time, Miss Taylor, if

                     you have got some specific concerns that we need to

          7          hear about in terms of the failure to grade it

                     properly or deal with the drainage, we would love to

          8          hear it.

                            MR. BIANCHI:   I'd like to take up the issue

          9          of an independent analysis of some sort, possibly

                     environmental or otherwise.  I know we have a

         10          hydrology report.

                            MR. BERNARD:   Can you read it?

         11                 MR. BIANCHI:   No, it doesn't really mean

                     much to me.  I'd like to know from an expert's

         12          viewpoint what the impacts would be here of the area

                     from an environmental viewpoint, and that covers a

         13          lot of things obviously, drainage, trees, all the

                     other things that go along with it.  I'd like to see

         14          an independent analysis of that as if this were a

                     larger subdivision almost.  We are looking at a DEIS

         15          and all that kind of stuff.

                            MR. VERGANO:   Sure.  We can get a quote from

         16          one of our approved environmental consultants.  That

                     quote will be given to the applicant and the

         17          applicant would pay for it.

                            MR. BIANCHI:   I'd like to see that.

         18                 MR. BERNARD:   And if we could have that

                     independent consultant make sense of the hydrology

         19          report and let me know.  For instance, in that

                     September 24th letter under wetlands, there's the

         20          paragraph, second paragraph under wetlands that

                     proposed subdivision would not effect this water

         21          course, that's the water course across the property

                     that goes down the steep slope and feeds the

         22          wetland.  This proposed subdivision of 2 houses

                     would not effect this water course in light of the

         23          distance and also the proposed drainage facilities,

                     i.e., dry wells as discussed below.  So the question

         24          I have, and I couldn't pick it up in the hydrology

                     report is, are the dry wells set, the size of them

         25          established based on a hundred year rain event?  Is
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          2          that what they are?  That's pretty standard.  I

                     think that's the only criteria you really have to

          3          meet.  As we all know, we get a lot of those hundred

                     year events in the course of an average year these

          4          days.  Ralph is shaking his head no.  Can you prove

                     that?

          5                 MR. STEINMETZ:   Yes.

                            MR. BERNARD:   So we can have that

          6          information over the past 2 years for anything that

                     exceeds hundred year flood events?

          7                 (Off microphone conversation)

                            MR. MASTROMONACO:    You have to go to

          8          noa.gov.

                            MR. BERNARD:   I have to go to noa.gov.  What

          9          do I look for?  How do I figure out for this area --

                     I don't want to know about Florida.

         10                 (Off microphone conversation)

                            MR. BERNARD:   You tell me and you get it for

         11          me too.

                            MR. STEINMETZ:   We will get it for you, Mr.

         12          Bernard.

                            MR. BERNARD:   Noa.gov?  I want to know.

         13          What?  I'll sort through it myself.  The question is

                     that are these dry well size, whatever size they

         14          are, if they are only for a hundred year storm event

                     then there will be times when that water course will

         15          be effected, there will be more water flowing down

                     that water course just by virtue of the fact that

         16          you now have more hardscape on that area.  You have

                     2 houses, you have a driveway.  Is that not correct?

         17                 MR. MASTROMONACO:   That whole issue is dealt

                     with the draft report.  One thing you have to

         18          realize is there are rock outcrops that compensate

                     for the additional -- (interrupted)

         19                 MR. BERNARD:   Wait.  Rock outcrops that do

                     what?

         20                 MR. MASTROMONACO:   There are exposed rock.

                            MR. BERNARD:   That is there now?

         21                 MR. MASTROMONACO:   Yes.

                            MR. BERNARD:   So we have some hardscape

         22          there already?

                            MR. MASTROMONACO:   Right.

         23                 MR. BERNARD:   But you are adding hardscape.

                     Are you saying that you are building on top of the

         24          rock outcrops?

                            MR. MASTROMONACO:   Right.

         25                 MR. BERNARD:   So you are taking in place of
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          2          the rock outcrops you are putting the house there?

                            MR. MASTROMONACO:   That accounts for a small

          3          fraction.  There is some additional positive

                     mitigation that we put in the dry wells.  You

          4          couldn't do the whole thing by just balancing out

                     the (inaudible).

          5                 MR. BERNARD:   I believe that.

                            MR. KLINE:   Mr. Chairman, I make a motion

          6          that we adjourn this public hearing to the November

                     7th meeting.

          7                 MR. KLARL:   There's a woman raising her

                     hand.

          8                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Sure.

                            UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM THE FLOOR:   I have

          9          a comment that they would like you to read the

                     topography map.  I have a couple comments.  I don't

         10          know if anyone has mentioned the population density

                     in our neighborhood.  It's very unusual for

         11          Cortlandt.  We are right on the edge of Peekskill.

                     There are very condos surrounding this area.  In my

         12          way of thinking, to take a beautiful area that is

                     clean, not built up and to change it so drastically

         13          is really a crime at this point.  It's for the

                     animals, it would be a shame.  My other one I wanted

         14          to say, the woman that lives on Hammond Avenue, the

                     house that is below all of this, she is very worried

         15          about the drainage because she has lived there for

                     quite a few years and knows what happens in a huge

         16          rain.  She will certainly cooperate if there's an

                     ecological engineer to come in and needs to go on

         17          her property.  Thank you.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Thank you.  Mr. Kline?

         18                 MR. KLINE:   Mr. Chairman, I make a motion we

                     adjourn this public hearing to our November 7th

         19          meeting.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Second?

         20                 MR. FOLEY:   Second.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   On the question.

         21                 MR. BIANCHI:   Should we postpone this

                     further if there is no more data to be reviewed?

         22                 MR. VERGANO:   I think that would be

                     advisable to postpone this to December.

         23                 MR. BIANCHI:   December.  Do we have any

                     information -- (interrupted)

         24                 MR. VERGANO:   We will have more information.

                     My office will complete a review of the hydrology

         25          report and have the environmental, presumably from
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          2          our consultant.

                            MR. KLINE:   I'll amend my motion to adjourn

          3          this to our December meeting.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Let me find out when the

          4          December meeting is.  December 12th.  We are on the

                     question.  All in favor?

          5                 (Board in favor)

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Opposed?  Thank you.

          6          Continuing with the public hearings again.  An

                     adjourned public hearing.  APPLICATION AND DRAFT

          7          ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT DATED MAY 2, 2007 BY

                     KIRQUEL DEVELOPMENT LIMITED FOR PRELIMINARY PLAT

          8          APPROVAL AND STEEP SLOPE, WETLAND AND TREE REMOVAL

                     PERMITS FOR A 27-LOT MAJOR SUBDIVISION OF 52.78

          9          ACRES OF PROPERTY LOCATED ON THE WEST SIDE OF

                     LEXINGTON AVENUE AND AT THE SOUTH END OF MILL COURT

         10          AS SHOWN ON A 10-PAGE SET OF DRAWINGS ENTITLED "SITE

                     DEVELOPMENT AND SUBDIVISION FOR RESIDENCES AT MILL

         11          COURT CROSSING" PREPARED BY CRONIN ENGINEERING,

                     P.E., P.C., LATEST REVISION DATED FEBRUARY 13, 2007.

         12          Mr. Steinmetz?

                            MR. STEINMETZ:   Good evening.

         13                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   We did have a site -- I

                     guess a second or third site inspection.

         14                 MR. STEINMETZ:   We did.  We appreciate the

                     time that the board took to go out and look at a

         15          couple specific issues that were articulated as

                     concerns at the last meeting.  I know you all

         16          visited the 2 lots along Lexington up at the top

                     before I and some of the conservation board members

         17          hooked up with you.  We also spent a fair amount of

                     time looking at the entrance to the subdivision, the

         18          road alignment and then we spent a great deal of

                     time at some wonderful property in the back behind

         19          that large rock outcropping.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   And then we walked across

         20          the wetland to get back out to the property.

                            MR. STEINMETZ:   And kudos to Mr. Cronin who

         21          actually got us out safely and at the right

                     location.

         22                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   I guess the issue that we

                     went to see was the driveway and the slope of the

         23          driveway crossing the very steep area off of

                     Lexington and getting to the flatter area of the

         24          property and that was a concern at the last meeting

                     and that was really the intent of the visit.  There

         25          were other issues that came up during the course of
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          2          our site inspection as it related to the detention

                     area that is being proposed that we would like to

          3          discuss as well.  I think was there any other issue?

                            MR. FOLEY:   The idea of Wild Birch.

          4                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   An alternative access,

                     right.  With that, before we get into specific

          5          comments, again, this is a public hearing.  Is there

                     anybody that wishes to comment on this application?

          6          Yes, ma'am.

                            MS. OLSEN:   My name is Alison Olsen.  I live

          7          on Mountain View Road.  My first question is, is

                     this going to be the final discussion for the public

          8          or are we going to be adjourned at some point?  I

                     just wanted to know because we have a petition here

          9          from a number of people that live in the area with

                     regards to this development.  We still haven't

         10          completed it yet and I want to know if we are going

                     to continue it?

         11                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Let me tell you what was

                     discussed at the work session and what the thinking

         12          is as of this moment.  Right now there's a public

                     hearing being held on in effect 2 very specific

         13          things.  The draft environmental impact statement

                     and the site plan.  Our intent is to close the

         14          public hearing on the draft environmental impact

                     statement, have the applicant go back and then

         15          prepare a final environmental impact statement that

                     addresses all of the comments that occurred during

         16          this public hearing, these, I don't know how many

                     public hearings, but probably one, 2, at the 3

         17          public hearings, 4 if we include the work session.

                     Over those 4 sessions, the audience as well as the

         18          board, raises a number of issues that they are now

                     obligated to address in the final environmental

         19          impact statement.  If we do close the public hearing

                     on the DEIS, they will go off and spend a month or 2

         20          or whatever preparing a final environmental

                     statement which we will receive and we will have a

         21          public hearing and discuss their comments in

                     response to what they heard over those meetings.

         22          The site plan we would like to remain opened because

                     we are not settled on what this proposed subdivision

         23          is going to look like.  We haven't decided as we

                     said at the work session whether it's 2 homes or 21

         24          homes.  Right now the proposal is 21 homes.  Mr.

                     Foley raises the issue of access, there are issues

         25          of the location of the road, as well as just a
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          2          number of homes, open space.

                            MS. OLSEN:   If I could read the main points

          3          and perhaps you can tell me whether it's the

                     particular matter at hand is whether we should

          4          actually continue collecting them or whether you

                     think it's a dead issue as regards to the DEIS and

          5          there's no point in continuing -- (interrupted)

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   What's the petition for?

          6                 MS. OLSEN:   Let me read it to you.  The

                     petition is basically addressed to you.  We, the

          7          undersigned residents of the Town of Cortlandt

                     living in close proximity to the proposed building

          8          of residences at Red Mill Crossing by Kirquel

                     Development Limited, and being affected by any such

          9          proposed development do hereby petition the board to

                     reject such proposed plans for 21 homes or more for

         10          the following reasons:  1, the DEIS fails to

                     adequately recognize, address and remediate

         11          potential water runoff caused by the development.

                     2, the DEIS and traffic study are inadequate,

         12          outdated and misleading in the report of traffic and

                     how it will be effected by the development.  3, the

         13          DEIS and traffic study completely failed to consider

                     the effect the development will have with regard to

         14          school bus traffic and safety.  4, the development

                     will place an unsafe amount of traffic onto Mill

         15          Court which then must exit onto Red Mill Road at a

                     presently dangerous intersect with limited line of

         16          site in all directions.  5, there is not enough open

                     space in this section of the town.  6, there is

         17          still concerns by the direct negative impacts of any

                     storm water runoff on our homes, septic systems and

         18          our streets, that is Mountain View Road, Red Mill

                     Road, Stone Court, Stonefield Court to name a few.

         19          We so far have collected 73 signatures.  This group

                     of people went around to collect these.  I'd like to

         20          say one thing about this.  I actually walked up and

                     down Red Mill Road and managed to collect a number

         21          of signatures who were home and the traffic was

                     horrendous going up and down.  Not only the noise,

         22          but it's very dangerous.  The other thing I'd like

                     to address is going back to the open space.  I have

         23          a map here, it's a very old one.  It's dated 2003.

                     It's a conceptual land use plan.  2003 master plan

         24          Town of Cortlandt, it's a draft.  It shows the

                     northeast quadrant, a fairly densely populated area,

         25          both commercial and residential, and the southeast,
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          2          a lot more open space as you can see from the map.

                     Being the proposed and existing green areas are

          3          proposed on the existing open space, here very

                     little.  I'd like to put in a request -- that's one

          4          thing.  Is there any possibility of this particular

                     area being considered as open space?  The other

          5          thing is, some people are very worried about the

                     possibility of blasting if this is to go through,

          6          because of possibility of damage to houses.  The

                     retention pond that is at the top of Mountain View

          7          Road which was put in at the time of the Wild Birch

                     Farm condos were built is inadequate, and I think

          8          this particular building with removal of trees and

                     shrubbery for this new development would only add to

          9          the problems that we have with storm water runoff.

                     I'd like to also ask if the e-mail letter which I

         10          had sent to the superintendent, Linda Puglisi, which

                     I had brought to the last meeting, if they had read

         11          it.  The other thing is something that was brought

                     up in a previous subject.  That was with regard to

         12          the lack of notification of people in this area

                     about the Kirquel project and when these meetings

         13          were being held and the matter was being addressed.

                     I found a lot of people I spoke to hadn't even heard

         14          about it, had no idea this development was going in.

                     Their maybe concern was traffic on Red Mill, how

         15          difficult it is to go to their driveways.  The

                     danger -- I myself when I come down Red Mill and I

         16          have to make a sharp left into my road, I have to

                     slow down to almost 10 miles an hour.  I indicate

         17          and then I have to indicate again because my

                     indicator goes off as I am turning and sometimes I

         18          have to stop.  If a car stops behind me, especially

                     in the wintertime, I'm using my car horn to make

         19          sure people take notice, because otherwise I'm

                     afraid of getting hit in the back of my car.

         20          Occasionally people are kind enough to stop so I can

                     get into my road.  My road isn't the only one that

         21          is dangerous.  Even turning left into McArthur from

                     Red Mill, turning out of Mill Court, the traffic is

         22          just multiplied tremendously since I moved in there

                     and I've lived there over 20 years.  Going back

         23          again, I'd like to address again the possibility of

                     the open space in this area.

         24                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Thank you.

                            MS. McDonnell:   Good evening.  Sue

         25          McDonnell.  I'm a resident of the Town of Cortlandt,
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          2          but tonight I'm speaking for Cortlandt Watch.  I'm

                     going to read a statement from Watch.  The Cortlandt

          3          Watch believes that the proposed Mill Court Crossing

                     proposal would be a detriment to the town for the

          4          following reasons:  It destroys valuable ecosystem

                     services such as erosion control, storm water

          5          drainage management and climate stability.  It will

                     worsen an already difficult traffic situation, and

          6          it increases the danger on these roads.  The project

                     site is 52.78 acres forested steep slope, that is in

          7          its current state provides crucial benefits to the

                     town and the nearby homes and businesses.  Tree

          8          roots stabilize and prevent erosion and trees

                     improve water quality by slowing and filtering

          9          rainwater as well as by protecting aquifers and

                     wetlands.  The hill that is the site of the proposed

         10          development is a very large contiguous stand of

                     trees on a sharp slope.  The drainage problems in

         11          the area are notorious.  Much was made of the

                     problem during hearings of the 2004 master plan.

         12          Trees in this place slow the velocity of storm water

                     as it travels downhill.  Removing trees allows for

         13          the water to pick up speed as it goes downhill which

                     in turn scours soil from the hillside which in turn

         14          becomes sediment and contaminates stream water.

                     Trees improve water quality by slowing and filtering

         15          rainwater as well as by protecting aquifers, water

                     sheds and wetlands.  We have seen this over and over

         16          again in the northern part of town, even to mud

                     slides which ended up in residents' closets, inside

         17          a home, and cars moved from their parking spaces

                     because of speed in the amount of water in a storm.

         18          In recent years, storms have become stronger and

                     hold more rain.  The 5, 10 or hundred year storm is

         19          an engineering term for the amount of water dropped

                     on land in one storm event.  By itself in an

         20          uninhabited area, a huge amount of water gets little

                     notice.  However, the amount of rain dropped on the

         21          southern sections of Westchester County while less

                     than a hundred year storm devastated whole

         22          neighborhoods and communities.  The town and its

                     residents have ample past experience with the

         23          disastrous results of stripping tree cover and

                     replacing with impermeable surfaces such as streets,

         24          driveways and roofs.  We do not need yet another

                     demonstration from this subdivision.  One acre of

         25          trees removes 2.6 tons of carbon dioxide each year.
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          2          Conversely, one acre of trees produces enough oxygen

                     for 18 people in one year.  Trees are one of our

          3          strongest allies in the battles against climate

                     change.  They do so much for us if we simply allow

          4          them to grow.  Removing over 400 trees to allow for

                     planned houses amounts to over 100,000 pounds less

          5          oxygen and 1,040 pounds more carbon dioxide.  That

                     is a very big carbon footprint.  There is no way

          6          that traffic patterns can be changed to make Red

                     Mill Road safer.  More trucks and cars and school

          7          buses will only make the road more dangerous.

                     There's been much talk about the location of houses,

          8          driveways and entrances and exits to and from this

                     property.  From my own experience, I lived in the

          9          neighborhood for 19 years and I traveled Red Mill

                     Road up and down several times a day.  For 19 years

         10          I worried as I drove it.  I even had concerns about

                     someone going over the downhill side and landing in

         11          the yard of the house on the north side of the curb.

                     That actually did happen.  The road with only a

         12          little bit of rain was slippery and with ice it's

                     downright dangerous.  One day at the start of a

         13          snowstorm I followed a snowplow down the road.  The

                     plow spun out right at McArthur Boulevard.  On a

         14          good, clear sunny day traffic moves far too quickly

                     because cars and trucks need speed to climb the

         15          hill.  Once when I was test driving a new car I told

                     the salesman I was going to drive Red Mill Road to

         16          see if the car could make it.  He urged me not to do

                     so since he said that the insurance companies

         17          consider this one of the most dangerous roads in the

                     county.  So we repeat, Cortlandt Watch maintains

         18          that this property is so important to providing

                     services and preventing worsening traffic impacts

         19          that it should remain in its current state.  To that

                     end, we urge the town to preserve the parcel by

         20          purchasing it.  We further urge the planning board

                     to defer consideration of the proposed project until

         21          this option can be exercised.  Thank you.

                            MR. POTTS:   I'm not here with any group.  My

         22          name is John Potts.  I'm here with my wife.  We have

                     been Cortlandt residents for 32 years.  We live at

         23          38 Trolley Road.  That's between South Hill and Red

                     Mill.  I was going to wing this, but I decided to

         24          prepare something because you were looking for our

                     concerns.  I want to make sure we really get them,

         25          so I have a prepared text that I'd like to read it

          1                  PB 13-05 KIRQUEL DEVELOPMENT LIMITED           40

          2          and I'd like to submit it to be part of the minutes

                     if that's okay with you.  I said my wife, Diane, and

          3          I live at 38 Trolley Road in a small section of

                     Trolley Road between Red Mill and South Hill Roads

          4          for the past 32 years.  I'm here tonight with a few

                     of our neighbors to tell you about some of our

          5          experiences and real concerns regarding a number of

                     existing problems with traffic, noise, safety and

          6          water runoff.  Which we believe will worsen if

                     developments like the Kirquel proposal are approved.

          7          Water runoff and the condition of existing water

                     mains are real concerns to us.  We and our neighbors

          8          have septic systems in this area.  We are all very

                     much concerned for any proposal for a major

          9          construction project on land that is nearby and at a

                     higher elevation.  In the past, we have seen the

         10          destructive results on our local wetland and local

                     water catch basins by construction that was going on

         11          miles away.  For example, during the construction of

                     the Birchwood Estates, excess silt from the

         12          construction site caused flooding of the wetland

                     adjacent to our property which is part of a 2-parcel

         13          lot at 95 Red Mill and also filled the catch basin

                     at 64 Trolley Road which is about a half mile east

         14          of our house on the other side of Red Mill.  The

                     catch basin had to be dredged several times during

         15          that construction project at the expense of

                     Cortlandt taxpayers.  That problem was not at all

         16          anticipated by the planning board, town engineer,

                     the developers, architects, the builders prior to

         17          the approval by the planning board.  We are also

                     concerned about the impact of any construction in

         18          our area on the existing water mains.  The water

                     mains in the neighborhood date from the 1950s.  They

         19          are fragile and subject to breakage.  In past years

                     we have had a number of water main breaks in our

         20          neighborhood, one of which washed the Trolley Road

                     neighbor's entire driveway into the immediate

         21          neighbor's backyard.  The potential for serious

                     water damage to our homes and property and

         22          disruption of this critical service as a result of

                     water main breakage has been acknowledged by Town of

         23          Cortlandt engineering and water departments as high

                     risk for all properties located below water mains.

         24          Unfortunately the fragile water mains on Trolley

                     Road and other roads in our area have not been

         25          replaced.  Existing traffic is another major
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          2          concern.  Developments like the one proposed will

                     only add to this serious problem.  One is only to

          3          drive on Red Mill Road, Trolley Road and other roads

                     that cross Red Mill to understand the serious aspect

          4          of the traffic problem that we are facing today,

                     safety.  The volume and speed of cars traveling on

          5          all these road is alarming, especially for vehicles

                     traveling do you know Red Mill Road.  Red Mill Road

          6          has become a dangerous thoroughfare.  Walking or

                     driving across any part of Red Mill Road is

          7          literally risking life and limb.  With cars

                     traveling on Red Mill often in excess of 40 miles

          8          per hour in with only a limited view of oncoming

                     traffic in any direction, one often has only seconds

          9          to cross Red Mill after deciding to attempt it.  Try

                     crossing Red Mill on Trolley Road and you'll see

         10          what I'm talking about.  Walking -- excuse me.

                     Visits to local post office, bank, hardware store or

         11          exercise club involves crossing Red Mill Road and

                     experiences can be at times quite unnerving.  In

         12          addition to the traffic problem is traffic noise and

                     that's an important one.  The instant din of traffic

         13          on Red Mill has virtually eliminated the simple

                     pleasure of enjoying time outside on a deck or in

         14          the backyard or even sleeping with an open window at

                     night.  We are not trying to stop developments in

         15          the town.  However, we think that the board approved

                     growth centers should not skirt laws protecting

         16          wetlands nor add or worsen existing problems.  Thank

                     you.

         17                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Give a copy to staff and

                     they will distribute it to the board.

         18                 MR. CANFIELD:   Hi, my name is Donald

                     Canfield.  I live at 155 Red Mill Road.  Frankly

         19          when I came here tonight I just came to listen, but

                     I didn't intend to speak, but now I want to speak.

         20          First of all I want to say how I admire this woman's

                     courage for walking up and down Red Mill Road.  She

         21          is either tremendously courageous or a total idiot.

                     Secondly, I started to think about whether I should

         22          speak to you about sitting in my driveway the other

                     morning after dropping my daughter off for the

         23          school bus at the bottom of Red Mill Road and

                     counting 42 vehicles going by as I was attempting to

         24          make a left-hand turn out of my driveway.  This was

                     around 8:50 in the morning, 42 vehicles.  Clearly

         25          the reason I came here was to say that I spoke to
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          2          this board and thank you very much for letting me

                     speak again, Mr. Kessler and all the rest of the

          3          board members.  I spoke to you in July, I believe,

                     about the water flow that comes across annually in

          4          the spring time down across this property onto my

                     property.  It's not a clear water course, it's not a

          5          water course that's on any map, it's just a water

                     flow that exists in the springtime of every year.

          6          Since it looks like this is a done deal, my big

                     concern now, and this is a question I'm asking and I

          7          don't want an answer from you right now, but

                     eventually I want an answer, is once this water flow

          8          begins to continue and runs across my property

                     forever and ever and turns my property into a

          9          wetland, who will recompense me for my lack of use

                     of my property.  As this water course continues to

         10          go down across my property and blows out the stone

                     walls between my property and Red Mill Road, who is

         11          responsible for those stone walls being blown out

                     every spring into the road?  Who is going to address

         12          this and how is it going to be addressed?  I don't

                     want answers to these questions.  I just pose the

         13          questions.  Because 3 or 4 years ago some of this

                     water which normally runs down -- which normally has

         14          run done from my property through a gap in the wall

                     across the property of 143 Red Mill Road and down

         15          through their driveway and onto Red Mill Road and

                     anybody who drives up Red Mill Road through that big

         16          curve every spring can notice that that curve in the

                     road is wet or is filled with ice, maybe this thick,

         17          because that water just courses down.  As the spring

                     progresses, as the trees leave out, as the trees

         18          absorb the moisture that stream stops.  But as

                     those -- as this development is made and what you

         19          call it, hard whatever, water has nowhere to go, it

                     will continue to course through my property, through

         20          143 down Red Mill Road and it will continue to

                     create ice, water and a wetland in the road and on

         21          our properties, so how it is this going to be

                     addressed?  When this developer is gone, when they

         22          dissolve their development company and when my

                     property is a water course and when somebody is

         23          suing me because rocks from my stone wall has blown

                     out into the street, what is my recompense?  These

         24          are my questions.  I hope they can be answered at

                     some point.  Thank you.

         25                 MS. OLSEN:   There's no way we can actually

          1                  PB 13-05 KIRQUEL DEVELOPMENT LIMITED           43

          2          get anymore signatures?  Can I just present this?

                            MR. FOLEY:   You can probably get --

          3          (interrupted)

                            (Off microphone conversation)

          4                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   If we were to close the

                     public hearing on DEIS we accept written comments

          5          for another 10 days which would include obviously a

                     petition.  Give it to staff.  Bring it to the

          6          planning department and they will make it part of

                     the record.

          7                 MR. JACINTO:   My name is Orlando Jacinto and

                     I live at 15 Mountain View Road.  I have 2 concerns.

          8          One, if there is going to be blasting, my house is

                     right behind this property.  I would like to be --

          9          at the expense of the builder to expect all the

                     houses in the area before and after if there is any

         10          damage.  Second, if it is a sewer, I think there's

                     going to be a sewer line in this development, all

         11          the neighbors should be able to be hooked up into a

                     line.  So if it's possible, that's at least

         12          something they could do for us taking a chance of

                     having water all over our property.  Thank you.

         13                 MR. PRIOLO:   Good evening, Frank Priolo, 8

                     Mill Court.  Since I've spoken several times before

         14          about the issues, I'll try to keep my comments

                     brief.  We talked a lot about water.  The one thing

         15          I think everyone in this room will agree is that

                     water flows downhill.  This is a development uphill.

         16          The people downhill will be affected.  We can all

                     argue about everything which way the water is going

         17          to go.  Everyone on this board generally agrees the

                     detention areas don't work.  They are built, they

         18          never get filled up, but yet we still keep using

                     them.  Something has to be done to protect the

         19          homeowners in the future from the water issue.  The

                     board has to address that.  If it's going to require

         20          a bond of some sort that remains in place to see

                     what the effect is from this settlement, maybe

         21          that's the solution.  Instead of dealing with future

                     events trying to predict the future which way the

         22          water will go, how it's going to be effected, let's

                     let this gentleman who wants to build post a bond

         23          sufficient to cover potential issues that will

                     develop afterwards and let that bond remain in place

         24          so he can't, as most developers do, go out of

                     business after the development is fully sold out so

         25          he absolves himself of liability.  That's my issue
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          2          on the detention area and the waters.  I heard

                     through the grapevine that there might have been

          3          another traffic study done.  Is that the case?

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   No.

          4                 MR. PRIOLO:   We still need a traffic study.

                     Everyone on this board agreed that that traffic

          5          study was inadequate, outdated and misleading.  It

                     was misleading for a lot of reasons.  I had a chance

          6          to go into the DEIS a little more fully and all of a

                     sudden I see the size of these houses that he's

          7          going to build.  They are 3,500 square feet.  Okay.

                     He's saying that these houses are going to have 1.6

          8          cars on average.  I have a 2,500 square foot house

                     with 4 bedrooms.  3,500 is going to have more than 4

          9          bedrooms.  It's going to have more people in it.

                     It's going to have bigger families.  Bigger families

         10          means more kids.  More kids means more cars.  1.6

                     cars per household is ludicrous, ludicrous.  I

         11          submit to you in every household there's going to be

                     at least 3 cars.  These houses are such a size that

         12          it will take 2 people working full-time to maintain

                     and pay for them.  So you have 2 people working and

         13          every kid who is able to drive is going to have a

                     car.  I know that from our neighborhood.  The small

         14          houses, the 2,500 square foot houses on our hill

                     where everyone has got at least one car -- at least

         15          one extra car for the children.  It's at least 3

                     cars.  Basically it's at least double what his

         16          traffic study says.  I also felt a little suicidal

                     the other day and I went down to Mill Court and I

         17          measured the line of site distance along Red Mill

                     Road from the traffic, the stop sign at the end of

         18          Mill Court to the west, which is the hardest one,

                     that's the one that is basically a blind curve

         19          coming around.  That blind curve there is less than

                     200 feet from that traffic stop sign to where you

         20          first see a car coming out.  I measured it.  I had a

                     tape measure less than 200 feet.  To the east which

         21          is up the hill coming down from McArthur is a little

                     bit better, it's about 250 feet.  That direction of

         22          flow of traffic imposes less of a hazard because you

                     are not coming directly out into that lane from Mill

         23          Court.  There is no addressing of the bus issue.

                     This is a dangerous situation.  As I stated before,

         24          how many more studies is the town going to pay for

                     concerning the excess traffic on Red Mill Road

         25          before they finally say enough is enough?  I keep
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          2          thinking of the cliche the straw that broke the

                     camel's back.  Every time you have a traffic study

          3          they will say 5 more cars isn't going to make much

                     of a difference.  The next study comes back and they

          4          say 10 more cars isn't going to make enough

                     difference.  Sooner or later enough is enough.  This

          5          board has the power to say now enough is enough.

                     There are too many cars coming out onto Red Mill

          6          Road from Mill Court.  Stop the traffic.  Here is

                     your first step.  Let's see if you want to put into

          7          practice what we have been paying for, the studies

                     we have been paying for to alleviate the traffic

          8          problem on Red Mill Road.  If you want to allow him

                     to build these houses, fine, but make him put an

          9          access out onto Lexington Avenue and get the traffic

                     off of Red Mill Road as the town is trying to do.

         10          It can be done.  We have spoken to an engineer who

                     works for the county.  Even though you are crossing

         11          wetlands, a road is possible.  If this board is

                     going to approve plans the way they are, giving the

         12          only access down Mill Court to Red Mill Road, I

                     submit to you the only plan they should approve is

         13          the alternative property layout B which provides the

                     minimal constraint disturbance for 7 houses.  7

         14          houses down Mill Court is tolerable for Mill Court.

                     It's still going to present a problem, but it's

         15          certainly less than 21 houses going down that area.

                     If you are going to allow more than that to be

         16          build, you need to have another access, specifically

                     another access out to Lexington Avenue.  In

         17          addition, if the board is going to approve this

                     subdivision, I suggest that the board make the

         18          builder improve the line of sight in a westerly

                     direction along Red Mill Road, that can be done.  I

         19          don't know what kind of an advantage you are going

                     to get.  I know there's a little bit of a bump out

         20          that can be taken away and give you a little bit

                     more line of a sight.  Unfortunately, I think that's

         21          only going to let you see what is coming a little

                     bit earlier, it's not going to stop the traffic.

         22          It's not going to stop the speed of the cars coming.

                     Again, my second suggestion is the posting of a bond

         23          for the water issues that will develop afterwards.

                     Also, if there is going to be blasting, I think the

         24          builders should be required to post a bond for that.

                     I don't know what the regulations are within the

         25          town.  I also think he should be required to pay for
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          2          a pre-inspection of all houses within a reasonable

                     distance to ensure that -- that damage done.  The

          3          fourth suggestion I have, and I don't know what else

                     to do about the school bus issue.  School buses are

          4          not going to be allowed to turn up onto that road.

                     They are not going to allowed to come out from Mill

          5          Court onto Red Mill Road.  I don't know how we can

                     alleviate that unless there's another access route.

          6          Maybe you make him buy mini-buses that can come up

                     there and make him pay for the drivers.  How long

          7          can that really last?  You can make him pay

                     initially, but that is not going to last forever.

          8          This is a problem that we are going to be stuck with

                     the rest of our lives.  I hate to be the bearer of

          9          gloom and doom, but of this proposal goes through

                     with this amount of houses and kids coming out and

         10          waiting for the bus at the end of Mill Court and

                     that bus staying there for a long period of time

         11          while the kids load and unload, something is going

                     to happen.  It's our kids that are going to get

         12          hurt, not the big developer, not the homeowners,

                     it's our kids.  That's what this board should be

         13          most worried about, our children who are going to be

                     damaged being down there and potentially harmed by a

         14          traffic accident on that road.  It's an accident

                     waiting to happen.  Anyone can tell you, you heard

         15          it here again tonight, the traffic situation on Red

                     Mill Road.  I was one of the first people to buy a

         16          house on Mill Court.  20/20 hindsight knowing the

                     traffic situation, I don't think I would have bought

         17          it now.  So I ask the board to really consider these

                     issues that we have brought up and deal with them

         18          the best they can.  I thank you for your time.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Thank you.

         19                 MR. FISCHER:   Good evening board, Andrew

                     Fischer.  These are all new comments, not things you

         20          heard before.  When I went in to the planning office

                     and saw a letter from the Westchester County

         21          Planning Department, it was discussing a proposed

                     Route 6 bypass road and they included a diagram

         22          showing 3 potential paths for future proposed Route

                     6 bypass roads.  2 of those 3 paths, the only 2

         23          realistic to be built because the third one was

                     going through severe steep slopes and wetlands, 2 of

         24          them go directly across the middle of this property

                     and would go through 2 or more of Kirquel's proposed

         25          houses and potentially one of his existing buildings
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          2          on an adjacent property.  A big proponent of this

                     bypass road, we need it, our northeast quadrant has

          3          suffered from the Cortlandt Town Center's growth and

                     over 150 new homes built over the last 10 years

          4          without the necessary traffic improvements.  The

                     Sustainable Traffic Study spent 3 or more years

          5          trying to figure out solutions to these problems and

                     recommended a Route 6 bypass road.  The Baker Street

          6          community has begged for better access to their

                     neighborhood which this road would provide.  If you

          7          approve this applicant's lot layout as proposed, it

                     would guarantee no future Route 6 bypass road and

          8          the only solution we will have to our traffic

                     nightmare will be lost.  The correspondence that I

          9          saw in the folder about this kind of glossed over

                     the subject.  For some reason we asked Edwards &

         10          Kelsey for a quote for them to look at the traffic

                     issue, but they did -- they were not our chosen

         11          traffic consultant on this, but yet they are the

                     company most qualified and most looked at this in

         12          the most detail in the Sustainable Development

                     Study, so I would suggest that you look at

         13          specifically asking Edwards & Kelly to comment on

                     the Route 6 bypass road proposal and how this

         14          property would stand in the way or not stand in the

                     way of that.  Also specifically ask the Westchester

         15          County Planning Department -- they need specific

                     questions.  When they are asked in general to just

         16          look at the stack of 1,500 pages they never seem to

                     get at the details.  You need to ask them

         17          specifically which routes are likely and where that

                     would fit adjacent to this property and on this

         18          property.  This applicant only shows you what is

                     within the boundaries on that line, but where the

         19          road comes from to the right, left, north, south

                     matter as well.  We need to see -- the public needs

         20          to be able to see diagrams that show that so we can

                     give you comments.  The comments that came from the

         21          New York State D.O.T. were a complete joke.  The

                     only thing they wrote, "We don't see a significant

         22          impact on the State Highway System."  I don't know

                     if we are interested in the State Highway System.  I

         23          don't know if that means the New York Thruway, I-87,

                     287.  Did we ask them specifically about Route 6 and

         24          Lexington Avenue?  Route 6 and Strawberry Road?  I

                     think if you rewrote and request to the State D.O.T.

         25          and comment on those specifically those 2
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          2          intersections, maybe they will give an answer.

                     Maybe they will tip their hand as giving a reality

          3          of this Route 6 bypass road and how this property

                     will impact it.  Our State D.O.T. has a history of

          4          not wanting to condemn property that has already

                     been built upon.  Right now this hasn't been built

          5          upon.  Once you have an approved plan they are not

                     going to propose building the road anymore.  The

          6          time to act is now.  Asking the state to

                     specifically comment on those 2 intersections, Route

          7          6 and Lex and Route 6 and Strawberry Road.  Also,

                     the Lakeland School District seems to be tongue-tied

          8          for comments as well.  Again, they are given a

                     packet of 1,500 pages or more and don't know what to

          9          make sense of.  Maybe you can ask them specifically

                     to comment on how many students George Washington

         10          Elementary School can handle without having to add

                     more classrooms and how many students they can

         11          handle at this location without having to add more

                     bus routes.  If they do indicate that they would

         12          need to add more classrooms or bus routes, maybe you

                     can ask them for a cost guesstimate on that.  If you

         13          don't give them specific questions they don't come

                     back with any answers or comments on a whole

         14          application.  I know firsthand that school is in

                     overcapacity as is.  The kids are in trailers that

         15          were put there 6 years ago as temporary trailers

                     have been used as full-time classrooms ever since.

         16          I know the 27 homes proposed would require more

                     classrooms, but you need that documentation in front

         17          of you.  Also if you do move forward with any

                     subdivision approval on this, I'll ask that you put

         18          a couple of conditions.  One is to put a condition

                     of a phased construction plan where they would

         19          stabilize one section of steep slope before moving

                     onto disturbing the next section of steep slope.  In

         20          the past, other projects sometimes construction

                     mistakes have happened where they go too fast and

         21          the downhill impact is silt in the streams and ponds

                     below.  I think you have heard from plenty of people

         22          here, that happens without disturbance, so they need

                     a phased approach to stabilize something and they

         23          need to pay for construction monitors to make sure

                     that phased plan is obeyed.  Secondly, I'd ask that

         24          you put a restriction that no oil tanks can be

                     stored on the property during construction and maybe

         25          even no oil tanks for the homes themselves and have

          1                  PB 13-05 KIRQUEL DEVELOPMENT LIMITED           49

          2          them use gas or propane service.  Because downhill

                     from here is the Peekskill Hollow Brook which is a

          3          very sensitive stream.  It's a public drinking water

                     supply for 41,000 people and with the steep slopes

          4          and drainage problems you have heard of, we really

                     can't risk having an oil spill that can pollute that

          5          drinking water supply.  At least if it were gas

                     service or propane service, that risk would be gone.

          6          I'm sure Con Edison would run gas lines down the

                     street for a subdivision.  Thank you for listening.

          7                 MS. DALEY:   Hi, good evening, my name is

                     Mary Jo Daley, I live on 9 Stonefield Court.  I was

          8          one of the people that was collecting the signatures

                     for the petition and I just want to for the record

          9          thank the people who signed it.  I had some

                     interesting conversations with people along the way

         10          and I'm going to make a few comments about that as I

                     read and make notes here, but not to sound

         11          redundant, I'd like to reiterate many of the issues

                     that have already been mentioned tonight.  The

         12          traffic being a main issue.  I was diving from Route

                     6, Lexington Avenue onto Strawberry around 4:00

         13          today and my daughter counted 32 cars from the end

                     of Strawberry Road down to where the end of mosque

         14          property ends and that's a daily ritual at that

                     time.  I'm sure Mr. Canfield who mentioned that his

         15          daughter counted 45 cars coming down Red Mill were

                     the ones cutting through from Strawberry Road, as we

         16          know people do from Route 6 to Strawberry Road to

                     Red Mill Road to go home from wherever they go to

         17          the northern part of the area.  Getting out of my

                     street on Stonefield Court is often a challenge and

         18          I'm heading out straight.  I can only imagine how

                     some of the people that live on Red Mill Road that

         19          actually attempt to back out of their driveway do it

                     with bravery, I guess, a lot of courage, which I

         20          believe Alison not only was brave going out on Red

                     Mill Road because I would not do that for my

         21          collecting of signatures, I stuck to Trolley Road

                     and my street, but it was also the determination

         22          that we all have to speak out against this

                     development.  There are 2 other small developments

         23          that were listed in the minutes this evening, I know

                     they are small, but it's still more development.

         24          That was a concern that I had upon entering this

                     evening.  There is a plan to build behind the

         25          mosque, I believe.  I know this is a Yorktown issue,
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          2          but it's still more houses.  How much traffic can

                     this area take?  Of course, we also have the bus

          3          safety issue which Mr. Priolo mentioned and we

                     mentioned when we were here fighting about the

          4          subdivision on Stonefield Court.  I know I mentioned

                     before that we tried having a bus come into our

          5          street, but they were unable to turn out onto Red

                     Mill Road because they had to make a wide turn and

          6          unless there was a stop sign farther down the road

                     to stop the oncoming traffic there was no way for a

          7          bus to get out of their safely.  I was also, you

                     know, a little concerned, my children do not benefit

          8          from a late bus that is provided by Putnam Valley

                     School District because they are dropped off at

          9          Trolley Road and the only way for them to get home

                     is to walk up Red Mill Road which I would never

         10          allow them to do so, so I don't benefit from

                     something that is offered to me.  And I just wanted

         11          to comment also on Alison's map that she pointed

                     out.  I think it was very shocking in a way to see

         12          what has changed in the last 5 or so years as far as

                     the open space, and I would like to emphasize the

         13          importance of that and I know that you all spoke

                     about your site visit and how you are stumbling

         14          through it at some instances.  I was thinking gee,

                     wouldn't it be nice if there was some pathways and

         15          trails for the people to enjoy as the only bit of

                     possible open space left in this northeast quadrant

         16          area.  I did speak to a person when I was out

                     collecting signatures and he said, you know, I

         17          really commend what you are doing and I think it's

                     great and I'm definitely going to sign the petition

         18          and he had my ear for about 10 minutes and he said

                     he used to come to these meetings and he used to

         19          fight certain issues, but he sort of gave us.  He

                     complimented meant you and Linda Puglisi for the

         20          hard work that you do, and I've stood before you and

                     thanked you as well, but it's just the importance

         21          that we reiterated before, that if you want to

                     continue all of this development in this area, the

         22          plan has to be made for all of these other issues.

                     He said he sort of just given up coming because he

         23          felt like the same issues were being addressed and

                     he kind of laughed and he said yeah, I've been

         24          fighting the traffic issue, yeah, I've been fighting

                     the drainage issue and I've seen so many other

         25          people when I sit home and watch these meetings on

          1                  PB 13-05 KIRQUEL DEVELOPMENT LIMITED           51

          2          TV speaking about the same issues, and I just think

                     it's a great concern.  I also wanted to mention that

          3          Alison had said that people didn't know about this

                     and a lot of houses that I went to said oh, yeah, I

          4          think I heard about that, or oh, really, they wanted

                     to know more about it.  As soon as I mentioned

          5          traffic they were like I'll take it, give it to me

                     right now, I want to sign it because the concern of

          6          the speed of the people that drive on Trolley Road

                     and Red Mill Road and all the other areas is very

          7          concerning and very scary.  It's almost like you are

                     taking your life in your hands whether you are on

          8          foot or in your car.  I would also like to point out

                     something that Mr. Priolo mentioned earlier about

          9          the 1.6 cars in the houses that were being built

                     which is totally ridiculous.  I know I mentioned it

         10          at a prior meeting that I was at one of the meetings

                     that we were invited to by the builder, who I

         11          thought was very gracious to have such a meeting,

                     told me that I had too many cars at my house.  We

         12          live on Stonefield Court and there's 10 houses and

                     there's at least 28 cars because one house has 5

         13          adults in it.  My house it's my husband, my mother

                     and I and my daughter is getting her license next

         14          year, so that's 4 people driving.  You can't tell me

                     if I have too many cars if I have the cars that are

         15          accommodating the people that are driving, it's

                     ridiculous.  To tell me there is only going to be

         16          1.6 cars in these million dollars houses is

                     ridiculous.  Another point that was brought up

         17          several times is the drainage.  Someone brought up

                     the retention pond and you know we had several

         18          concerns and issues with the retention pond on

                     Stonefield Court.  There was also a mention in an

         19          earlier public hearing thing about a geologist

                     report.  I know that I questioned that before and I

         20          believe you said one was done, but was there any

                     specificity on the native American artifacts?  I

         21          just don't think that the amount of time and the

                     money that I know it takes to put in such a strong

         22          detailed search for such things was truly done,

                     perhaps maybe a small area was done just to appease

         23          the result of such a thing, but I don't think it was

                     truly done in such a vast area.  I would also like

         24          to point out, Mr. Canfield mentioned about the

                     concern that he had with drainage and possibly

         25          turning his property into wetlands as well as other
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          2          areas with this development.  Now you are causing

                     concerns for future wetland problems or drainage

          3          issues.  One thing that I would like to say that if

                     these houses do get approved, for whatever many

          4          houses are approved, that a deed restriction be

                     placed that was not done at the time that Stonefield

          5          Court was built and that's why there was a problem

                     when the subdivision there was trying to be

          6          approved, that was something that someone on Trolley

                     Road who was unable to be here this evening asked me

          7          to please consider and strongly make sure that it's

                     in writing.  I would just like to close -- well,

          8          actually there was one other thing that someone

                     asked me to mention.  Because Red Mill Road is such

          9          a busy thoroughfare, cut through from getting from

                     Route 6 to wherever people are going that possible

         10          speed bumps are put in, that it was done somewhere

                     in Yorktown.  I would like to close by saying I

         11          can't object to the growth or deny a land owner to

                     build on land, but the town has to consider all the

         12          issues in the big plan.  I vaguely remember that

                     when we were doing our cul-de-sac that there were

         13          some guidelines for a cul-de-sac with town laws

                     against the size of a cul-de-sac and the distance of

         14          a cul-de-sac, so I hope the town also considered

                     that.  I appreciate your time and effort in all that

         15          you do.  Thank you.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Thank you.

         16                 MR. GANSVIS:   Rich Gansvis, 6 Mill Court.

                     This is fairly brief.  I just want to mention my

         17          concern again about the ground water.  The only

                     thing keeping the subsurface water in check are the

         18          trees and all the vegetation.  And the more trees

                     you cut down, the more groundwater there's going to

         19          be.  I don't think you can predict where the

                     groundwater is going to go.  I don't think an

         20          engineer can come up on Mill Court and point out

                     where all the little springs are.  I think the only

         21          ones that know where those little springs are are

                     those of us that live on Mill Court, so I can't be

         22          convinced that they can really make a feasible plan.

                     The groundwater is very -- I don't understand how

         23          they are going to alleviate the problem by dry

                     wells.  To me, the dry well, they are going to dig a

         24          hole in the ground and they are going to fill it

                     with water.  I don't know how that's going to help

         25          the groundwater.  To me that's just creating a
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          2          reservoir for more water to percolate into the soil

                     and to elevate the water table.  And that's really

          3          my major concern.  Thank you.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Thank you.  All right.

          4                 MR. BOYD:   I'll make it brief.  William

                     Boyd.  I live at 190 Red Mill Road.  I live right at

          5          the end, across the street from Mill Court.  Talking

                     with the groundwater, I'm not sure how that will

          6          affect, I guess that's speculation because right now

                     it doesn't affect me.  It's a pretty steep slope.  I

          7          heard you talk about you visited the site and they

                     took you out towards Lexington; is that correct?

          8                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   We started off on

                     Lexington and then went to the area of Mill Court.

          9                 MR. BOYD:   Did you go down Mill Court or

                     just back up?

         10                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Not this visit.

                            MR. BOYD:   Next visit come up Mill Court.

         11                 MR. KLINE:   We did that on the first time.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   On the site visit.

         12                 MR. BOYD:   I encourage you to come to my

                     house and try to get out of my driveway.  It's

         13          pretty tricky.  Just getting the mail is scary

                     enough.  My son has to catch a bus in the morning

         14          and he has to cross the street, so that's something

                     that pretty dangerous for him and it's kind of scary

         15          for us to think about.  Adding more children, I

                     agree with the neighbors, it's just -- you are just

         16          compounding it and some day this is just going to

                     blow up.  The developer is not going to be affected,

         17          it's going to be us.  I just thank you so much for

                     your time.

         18                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Thank you.  All right.

                     Our intent was to close the public hearing on the

         19          DEIS, but it's getting late here.  I think the board

                     has some very specific issues that it wanted to

         20          address in the FEIS, so I think I would recommend we

                     keep this open one more time just to be sure that

         21          everybody has specific questions and I would urge my

                     colleagues to make sure we have very specific

         22          questions that we want addressed in the FEIS.  For

                     example, I don't know if your intent was to have

         23          another traffic study in the FEIS.  The question has

                     been raised.  I imagine you are going to answer

         24          saying you already did a traffic study, but it seems

                     clear there seems to be a human cry here for another

         25          traffic study.
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          2                 MR. STEINMETZ:   Let's start with that one

                     first.  I don't know how with all due respect, Mr.

          3          Chairman, holding the public hearing on the DEIS

                     opened until the next month addresses that at all.

          4          If you want to ask us that right now, that's fine.

                     The answer is if there are any supplemental traffic

          5          questions that we have gotten from the board or from

                     members of the public, as you know they have all

          6          been taken down by our stenographer, each and every

                     one of them will be addressed.  If our traffic

          7          consultant determines his data is somehow

                     inaccurate, I'm sure we will somehow have to deal

          8          with that.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   The likelihood is he's

          9          not going to say his traffic study was inadequate.

                     Let's be fair.  That's what the FEIS is going to

         10          say.

                            MR. STEINMETZ:   If you are asking for us to

         11          do an entirely new traffic study, I don't think

                     there's any basis for it.  You can have your

         12          consultant, Mr. Chairman, review that information

                     and determine if there is some deficiency.  You know

         13          we have done this -- the public may not be aware,

                     but you know we do this on every project where

         14          there's a gap in time between the DEIS and FEIS and

                     there's ways that these traffic consultants, both

         15          ours and one that the town hires that my client pays

                     for reviews this information.

         16                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   I understand that.  The

                     issue isn't solely traffic obviously.  We have been

         17          spending an hour listening to the public.  There

                     were very specific questions that the board had at

         18          the work session and I think you were there for most

                     of it.

         19                 MR. STEINMETZ:   We got all of those

                     questions down.

         20                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   But they were not all on

                     the record.

         21                 MR. STEINMETZ:   Here is what I'll suggest.

                     We have had 4 sessions of this public hearing in

         22          connection with the DEIS.  The public has had a full

                     and fair opportunity to comment.  Your board has had

         23          a full and fair opportunity to comment.  Your staff

                     has.  However, even if you close the public hearing

         24          on the DEIS this evening, as you well know we can

                     create a time period for further written comments to

         25          come in subsequent to tonight while my client and
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          2          his development team begin the preparation of the

                     FEIS.  Mr. Chairman, you know I'm not trying to stop

          3          your board from getting answers to every question.

                     If I don't answer them now we are going to end up

          4          dealing with it during the FEIS process.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   But the reality is that

          5          you are already preparing the FEIS.

                            MR. STEINMETZ:   I don't think that's

          6          actually a fair statement.  My client will tell you

                     that he's not authorized his team to prepare it

          7          until we have a sense of what the totality of the

                     comments are so that Mr. Miller's office, Mr.

          8          Cronin's office and my office can begin grouping

                     those comments and responding to them as we are

          9          required to under SEQRA.

                            MR. VERGANO:   There are a couple of options.

         10          You can close the public hearing and bring this back

                     under old business.  Of course, the board can opine

         11          on whatever issues and that can be addressed in the

                     FEIS or simply leave -- as we mentioned earlier in

         12          the meeting, we would leave the meeting opened for

                     10 days after the public hearing is closed, the

         13          comment period opened for 10 days, we can make that

                     20 days, there are a couple of options here.

         14                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Let me ask the board.  If

                     we close it does the board want to submit their very

         15          specific written questions so that it's addressed in

                     the FEIS?

         16                 MS. TODD:   I'd rather do that speaking.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Speaking at a public

         17          forum?

                            MR. BIANCHI:   Yes.

         18                 MR. FOLEY:   I would too.  Mr. Steinmetz,

                     with all due respect in the past, starting with the

         19          scope which may be what you are counting as 4 public

                     hearings on this, the work session, special meeting

         20          which was productive was not a public comment.

                     There are quite a few things that were brought up by

         21          me and others at the scope that really weren't

                     addressed in the first EIS, not the revised.  I

         22          think I said that at the work session.

                            MR. STEINMETZ:   You did, and your board

         23          members reminded you that your board accepted the

                     document as complete with regard to scope, content

         24          and adequacy.

                            MR. FOLEY:   I'd rather keep this open.  I

         25          want this board to possibly send a memo to the town
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          2          board based on what I've been talking about for 2

                     years as a possible, not an emergency access into

          3          Wild Birch, and I know some Wild Birch people are

                     here and don't want it, but we are looking at

          4          something for the greater good of the town and the

                     safety of an adjoining neighborhood can only take so

          5          much of the traffic.  If the town or whatever we

                     request in a memo could look at the possibility of

          6          like in one of your alternate plans, whatever it was

                     5 or 6 of the homes egressing onto the 2

          7          alternatives, one would go into Wild Birch or to

                     Amherst or they could choose to go down Armstrong to

          8          South Hill and out towards the traffic circle and

                     avoid the dangerous part of Red Mill.  It gives you

          9          2 diffusions of traffic.  At the time I would

                     request in that memo that we ask that part of your

         10          plan would be separated from the main body so that

                     would only be a few houses that perhaps Wild Birch

         11          would be impacted.  If Wild Birch agreed to public

                     access with turning over the roads to the town,

         12          there may be an upside to that where you would not

                     have to maintain through your common fees or

         13          whatever the snow plowing or road maintenance, the

                     town would pick that up.  The other portion of your

         14          plan, perhaps it would be cut in half the number of

                     homes down Mill Court to Red Mill and the other 3 to

         15          5 homes are on Lexington.  While I first explored

                     the idea of bringing an access up to Lexington, it

         16          does traverse the wetlands and the slopes so it's

                     not that practical.  I think the better answer is

         17          Wild Birch, and as I said at the previous meeting,

                     and I have confirmation of this from a citizen from

         18          the area of Winthrop or whatever that neighbor is

                     called, I forgot, that feeds out onto Westbrook,

         19          that the original plans and approvals, I thought,

                     for Wild Birch before it was called Wild Birch was

         20          to have an access into these vacant adjacent

                     properties which may have been developed in the

         21          future in which you are one of them now.  That's why

                     I have continually brought it up.  I brought it up

         22          in the past and now.  Could we do a memo as a board

                     and ask the town board to look into this, again not

         23          to hurt Wild Birch, but to share some of the impacts

                     of this.  The other one would be this Route 6 bypass

         24          that was brought up.  I was on the Sustainable

                     Development Task Force for a number of years as a

         25          citizen stakeholder and I thought that Yorktown
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          2          testified at the scoping meeting, you know, about an

                     80-foot right of way through your property, through

          3          your site plans.  I don't know if it's there

                     anymore.  It's not on the latest plan that I have.

          4          I think that bypass even if it doesn't end up being

                     the northern one through your property is key to

          5          solving the town's problems on Route 6 from the

                     Yorktown border down to the town center, so I think

          6          that has to be shown on the site plan.  There are

                     other issues.  Access to Mountain View and some of

          7          them have been explained to me.  Those are some of

                     the issues I have and would like to keep this open,

          8          open space being the main one.  No real discussion

                     on open space, yet we received something from the

          9          land trust, maybe that person should have been

                     invited to speak.  I don't know.

         10                 MR. KLINE:   If we choose one of the options

                     Ed threw out of just closing the hearing and

         11          bringing this back under old business, will those

                     comments then be accorded the same weight for

         12          purposes of the obligation to respond in the FEIS?

                            MR. VERGANO:   Absolutely.

         13                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Does the applicant agree

                     with that?

         14                 MR. STEINMETZ:   I want to make sure I

                     understand what Ivan is saying so my client and I

         15          are clear.

                            MR. KLINE:   It seems to me that the board

         16          hasn't had a chance to digest everything that has

                     been said in comment and Ed suggested why don't we

         17          close the public hearing since the public has had 3

                     or 4 meetings to speak and bring it back under old

         18          business and at which we can give our comments, will

                     the applicant then respond to those as if it given

         19          at a public hearing?

                            MR. STEINMETZ:   Absolutely.  So the public

         20          is clear, because I think the chairman eluded to it

                     earlier, so the public is clear, the public will

         21          have another opportunity to comment on the FEIS as

                     this board's practice, even though SEQRA does not

         22          mandate a public hearing on an FEIS, this board

                     under this chairman's leadership has consistently

         23          conducted itself that way whether applicants object

                     or not.  I know that you are going to giving the

         24          public another opportunity.  We are not trying to

                     prevent the public from coming forward and

         25          commenting on the FEIS.  Give my client a chance to
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          2          address the site distance, the traffic, the storm

                     waters, the school children, the bus school bus, the

          3          wetlands, the alternative access points, the Wild

                     Birch issue, we've heard them for 4 meetings.  Give

          4          us a chance to start doing it.  We look forward to

                     coming back next month.  If there is anything else

          5          that we have missed, obviously your board will

                     remind us.  We will make sure we address it.

          6                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Very good.

                            MR. BIANCHI:   Verbal comments will be

          7          accepted at the next meeting from the board is what

                     you are saying?  Just to be clear and responded to.

          8                 MR. STEINMETZ:   Absolutely.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   There will be a 10-day

          9          comment period if we were to close the public

                     hearing if the public wishes to comment.

         10                 MR. STEINMETZ:   I believe that's statutory.

                            MR. FOLEY:   After the next meeting granted

         11          it would come back under old business?

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Yes.

         12                 MR. FOLEY:   At the discretion of the board

                     chairman, will the public be able to respond at all?

         13                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Not if we close the

                     public hearing.

         14                 MR. KLARL:   The chairman does from time to

                     time give point of order.

         15                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   I think we heard quite

                     consistently from the public over the 3 very long

         16          public hearings what the issues are.  I don't think

                     there's -- (interrupted)

         17                 MR. FOLEY:   Would this mean that the

                     applicant would treat seriously the alternative of

         18          lesser homes with lesser impacts?

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   We are not closing the

         19          public hearing on the site plan.  We are just

                     talking about the DEIS.  We have not reached any

         20          agreement as to what this development looks like,

                     what the access is or with what the number of homes

         21          may or may not be.  We have not done that.  Site

                     plan remains open.  That will continue along as they

         22          produce their FEIS.  There is no agreement here on

                     development or not, and if there is development what

         23          the number of homes will be.  That's very clear.

                            MR. STEINMETZ:   That's correct, Mr.

         24          Chairman, Mr. Foley, my client believes he has

                     before you a viable, buildable and environmentally

         25          sensitive 21-lot plan and that's a reduction from
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          2          the 27-lot plan that he spent a great deal of time

                     analyzing.

          3                 MR. FOLEY:   That's my problem, okay.

                            MR. STEINMETZ:   Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   We haven't acted on

                     anything yet.  One final short comment.

          5                 MS. OLSEN:   The people in the area who have

                     addressed these problems and these particular

          6          subjects, drainage, schools and so on, over a period

                     of several months, maybe a year, I'm not quite sure,

          7          and so far we have had nothing come back to them.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   No.  The obligation is to

          8          address this in the FEIS.

                            MS. OLSON:   If we address it, yes.  Do we

          9          have any come back on those particular things?

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Mr. Steinmetz has --

         10          (interrupted)

                            MS. OLSON:   It's not closed at that point?

         11                 MR. KLINE:   There's new hearings on the FEIS

                     at that point.

         12                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   There will be another

                     public hearing on the FEIS.  Once we receive the

         13          document we review it, staff reviews it and our

                     consultant will review that document as well.

         14                 MS. OLSEN:   And are you -- is the planning

                     board going to look at the possibility of open

         15          space?

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Absolutely.

         16                 MS. OLSEN:   Since we have so little open

                     space.

         17                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Let's be clear.  It's

                     nice to talk about open space, but the applicant,

         18          not to speak for him, is going to seek some sort of

                     financial return for open space.  It has to go to

         19          the town board and say we think open space is great,

                     we can do that, but there's a price to be paid.  Is

         20          the town willing to pay that price and are the

                     citizens willing to pay that price?

         21                 MR. KLINE:   This board does not have the

                     authority to turn somebody's property into all open

         22          space.  We don't have a funding mechanism.

                            MS. OLSEN:   Am I correct to understand that

         23          recently there are several areas in the southern

                     part of the Town of Cortlandt that have been granted

         24          as open space?

                            MR. KLARL:   As part of approval?

         25                 MS. OLSEN:   Granted and open space.  The
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          2          town will pay for that or the state?

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   The last one that I'm

          3          aware of where there was funding was Hill top up

                     north of Annsville Circle.  That's the last one that

          4          I recall where -- (interrupted)

                            MR. KLARL:   We had open space where we

          5          approved a project, Emery Ridge.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   There are other

          6          discussions as I understand it between the town

                     board and other applicants in terms of existing

          7          applications in front of this board where they are

                     talking about purchasing their property, but there's

          8          been no agreement that I'm aware of.  We still have

                     those applications in front of us.

          9                 MS. OLSEN:   I remember seeing something

                     about over 600 acres turned into open space.  It may

         10          have been -- (interrupted)

                            MR. KLINE:   You are probably thinking of

         11          something like Valeria whereas part of the approval

                     that the board gives in connection with the

         12          subdivision there's an extensive amount of space

                     preserved as open space, but that's different.

         13                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   If there is some approval

                     here, there will be some open space that will be

         14          deeded to the town.

                            MS. OLSEN:   The most important part, is it

         15          going to be an area that is not just wetlands?

                            MR. BIANCHI:   We don't know the answers to

         16          these questions.  That's why we need to proceed to

                     the next phase.

         17                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   We have to proceed along

                     the SEQRA path.  If there is some corollary action

         18          that's going to take place in terms of talking to

                     the applicant about purchasing the land for open

         19          space, we would applaud that and we welcome that,

                     but we can't stop the process and await that

         20          occurrence.  We have to continue along.  If there is

                     some activity in that regard, then that's wonderful.

         21                 MS. OLSEN:   The next question is will there

                     be some sort of proposal in regards to reducing

         22          those homes?  I know at one time there was a work

                     session and it was discussed at 16, 17, 18 houses

         23          and then it was increased up to 21 at the work

                     session.

         24                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   No.  Let's be clear.  We

                     had a work session where we sat with the applicant

         25          and discussed the layout of the property and homes
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          2          that we thought were perhaps inappropriate.  I don't

                     know if that's the right word, for a building lot.

          3          We made a suggestion.  The applicant listened to our

                     suggestions and came back with a proposal for 21.

          4          As I said before, the preliminary plat is still

                     under discussion.  There's been no agreement as to

          5          the number of homes.  They have not proposed 21 from

                     their original proposal of 27 and we are in the

          6          process of evaluating that.  I can't tell you

                     sitting here tonight what the number is.  We haven't

          7          gotten that far.  That is why we will await the

                     information in the FEIS and we will take that into

          8          account as we sit and analyze the site development

                     plan and decide collectively what we think an

          9          appropriate number of homes is for a development, if

                     we approve it at all.  That's the point we are at.

         10                 MR. FOLEY:   May I just say on open space,

                     about funding, I believe there's new state

         11          legislation that was passed about some funding for

                     municipalities for open space.  I'm not totally

         12          knowledgeable on it, but it's worth looking into.

                            MR. FISCHER:   Andrew Fischer, I'll be quick.

         13          On the SEQRA process, it was my understanding that

                     when the public reviews the DEIS and finds

         14          inaccuracies, discrepancies, conflicts, factual

                     inaccuracies, that the applicant has to reply to

         15          that before we move onto the FEIS and we get to see

                     that.

         16                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   The vehicle responding is

                     the FEIS.

         17                 MR. FISCHER:   It seemed in the past that

                     that has happened on other applications.

         18                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   The applicant has no

                     obligation to respond to the public exempt through

         19          the FEIS process.  They can if they choose, but

                     that's the vehicle.

         20                 MR. KLARL:   I think he's talking about where

                     we had a vote one time where the DEIS was

         21          satisfactory to the scope, content, adequacy.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   We have already gone

         22          through that.  We already ruled that the DEIS was

                     responsive to the scope that we established at a

         23          public hearing, another public hearing on the

                     scoping document.  We closed the public hearing on

         24          that scoping document.  They went back and prepared

                     the DEIS, we reviewed it, staff reviewed it, our

         25          consultants reviewed it and after a number of
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          2          iterations and a number of changes, many revisions

                     to the DEIS, we accepted it as complete again in

          3          regard to the scope.  Now, issues come up as we

                     review the DEIS as to what is in there and we ask

          4          for further clarification and that will now be

                     forthcoming in the FEIS.

          5                 MR. FISCHER:   I was thrown back by the

                     comment about asking for another traffic study as if

          6          it was some duplicate of the first one.  Dozens and

                     dozens of people have come up here and criticized

          7          the accuracy and validity of this traffic study, so

                     we are not asking for another one, we are asking for

          8          the first real one because this one was just filled

                     with inaccuracies and impossibilities.

          9                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   I heard that consistently

                     throughout all the meetings.

         10                 MR. FISCHER:   I thought we had a chance to

                     see that and comment on that before moving onto the

         11          FEIS.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Comment on what?

         12                 MR. FISCHER:   On a real traffic study, an

                     accurate one.

         13                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   I think the applicant

                     would say that it is accurate and their consultant

         14          is going to say that it is accurate, so I don't know

                     where we go with that.

         15                 MR. FISCHER:   The people are trying to make

                     their case to you and ask you to look at the site,

         16          realistic dates and times on your own.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   The problem that many of

         17          us have with traffic studies is what their

                     expectation is -- it's very hard not to be able to

         18          count cars.  I think it's pretty clear that somebody

                     can count cars.  The issue comes up as to what the

         19          expected growth is.  They use a very conservative, I

                     think it's 2 percent a year expectation of growth as

         20          they build out future years in the traffic study and

                     I think that's where some of us have issues where

         21          that may not be realistic.

                            MR. FISCHER:   That's why I ask for companies

         22          that are more intimately familiar with the area to

                     take a harder look at it.  If that can happen -- my

         23          concern is when we get to the FEIS process, things

                     like lot count and site selection are much more set

         24          in stone there then they are not.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Site selection is not set

         25          in stone.  That is why we are keeping the public
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          2          hearing open on the preliminary plat.  That means

                     what they are proposing has not been accepted and we

          3          are still negotiating as to placement, roads, number

                     of units.  That is why we are keeping it open.  We

          4          are nowhere near a meeting of the minds on that.

                            MR. FISCHER:   Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Okay.  Loretta?

                            MS. TAYLOR:   Mr. Chairman, I move that we

          6          close the public hearing on the DEIS and review that

                     as old business for the next meeting while we keep

          7          open the hearings for the preliminary plat so that

                     we can further explore issues of concern.  That's my

          8          motion.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Second please?

          9                 MR. BIANCHI:   Second.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   On the question.

         10                 MR. FOLEY:   On the question.  I'll vote to

                     close understanding the SEQRA process, but I would

         11          hope this board, we are working on the larger of

                     your plans, originally 27, I would hope we also have

         12          discussion in the future on the smaller alternatives

                     and some of the other ideas that have been brought

         13          forth, not only by the public, but by at least this

                     board member where I really felt starting from the

         14          scope stuff wasn't even addressed in the first FEIS.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Thank you.  We are on the

         15          question.  All in favor?

                            (Board in favor)

         16                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Opposed.  Thank you.  Our

                     final adjourned public hearing.  REFERRAL FROM THE

         17          TOWN BOARD FOR CHANGES TO THE ZONING CODE TABLE OF

                     DIMENSIONAL REGULATIONS IN THE CC, COMMUNITY

         18          COMMERCIAL, HC, HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL, AND HC-9A,

                     HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL/MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL ZONING

         19          DISTRICTS FOR BUILDING SETBACKS, BUILDING COVERAGE

                     AND LOT COVERAGE.  Is there anybody here that wishes

         20          to comment on this issue?  Okay.  Any comments from

                     the board on this?

         21                 MS. TODD:   I think I'm ready to go along

                     with our staff's recommendation that it's a good

         22          thing.

                            MR. BERNARD:   Here, here.

         23                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Can I have a motion,

                     please?

         24                 MS. TODD:   I'd like to make a motion that we

                     send a memo back to the town board in support of the

         25          zoning changes.
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          2                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Let's close the public

                     hearing first.

          3                 MS. TODD:   And to close the public hearing.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Not necessarily in that

          4          order.

                            MS. TODD:   Okay.

          5                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Second, please?

                            MS. TODD:   Flip those around.

          6                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Second?

                            MR. BIANCHI:   Second.

          7                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   On the question.  All in

                     favor?

          8                 (Board in favor)

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Opposed?

          9                 MR. FOLEY:   Mr. Chairman, may I backtrack a

                     minute?  At the next meeting on this previous

         10          project, old business, I could then address the

                     issue of a memo to the town board or will that be

         11          done by nature -- by virtue of what I said here?

                            MR. VERGANO:   We are going to do that.

         12                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Good.

                            MR. VERGANO:   You really should do a motion.

         13                 MS. TODD:   Motion to what?

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   How about you prepare a

         14          draft for us to review at the next meeting, that way

                     we will look at it before it goes.

         15                 MR. VERGANO:   Good.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Our final public hearing

         16          of the evening is a new public hearing.  APPLICATION

                     OF J. FOSHAY REALTY, FOR THE PROPERTY OF RICOCETT

         17          REALTY, FOR SITE DEVELOPMENT PLAN APPROVAL FOR THE

                     CONSTRUCTION OF A PROPOSED ADDITION TO AN EXISTING

         18          HOUSE FOR USE AS A REAL ESTATE OFFICE LOCATED ON A

                     7,046 SQUARE FOOT LOT AT 3240 EAST MAIN STREET

         19          (ROUTE 6) AS SHOWN ON A 2-PAGE SET OF DRAWINGS

                     ENTITLED "PROPOSED REAL ESTATE OFFICE ADDITION"

         20          PREPARED BY TURNQUIST ARCHITECTS, LATEST REVISION

                     DATED JULY 26, 2007.  Now, we are going to have to

         21          adjourn this because there was, I guess, we didn't

                     have the 20-day required notice prior to the public

         22          hearing; is that correct, Ken?

                            MR. VERSCHOOR:   Yes.  The sign that you

         23          posted on the property had to be up 20 days before

                     and it ended up being 10 days.  What we intend to do

         24          is conduct a public hearing tonight and then adjourn

                     this and depending on what comments we get tonight

         25          have a resolution for the next meeting to approve
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          2          your application.  So if there are any comments you

                     have tonight, this is still a valid public hearing.

          3                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Anybody in the audience

                     that wishes to comment on this application?  Any

          4          comments from the staff or the board?

                            MR. FOLEY:   Just a quick one from this board

          5          member.  I mentioned bypasses.  Ed knows what I'm

                     talking about.  Route 6 bypass would not affect this

          6          property or this application, meaning one of the

                     alternatives can choices closer to Route 6, it would

          7          not, it would behind it if it ever happens?

                            MR. VERGANO:   Right.

          8                 MR. FOLEY:   That's all I want to know.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Thank you.  Any other

          9          comments from the board?

                            MR. FOLEY:   I make a motion.

         10                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Mr. Foley.

                            MR. FOLEY:   I make a motion to adjourn this

         11          to the November meeting with a resolution prepared

                     for that meeting, resolution of approval.

         12                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Second, please?

                            MR. BERNARD:   Second.

         13                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   On the question.  All in

                     favor?

         14                 (Board in favor)

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Opposed?  Do you

         15          understand what is going on?

                            MS. FOSHAY:  Yes, I understand.  I have a

         16          question.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Come up to the

         17          microphone?

                            MS. FOSHAY:  How much longer before possibly

         18          whether you grant me the right to rebuild what used

                     to be the garage as part of the office and the

         19          handicapped bathroom before I can put my sign out

                     front?  They are not separate issues.

         20                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   The expectation is you

                     will have approval on November 7th.

         21                 MS. FOSHAY:  Thank you, Chairman, members of

                     the board, have a good evening.

         22                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   You too.  Onto old

                     business.  APPLICATION AND FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL

         23          IMPACT STATEMENT DATED APRIL 4, 2006 SUBMITTED BY

                     PETER PRAEGER OF MOUNT AIRY ASSOCIATES FOR

         24          PRELIMINARY PLAT APPROVAL, WETLAND, STEEP SLOPE AND

                     TREE REMOVAL PERMITS FOR A 5-LOT MAJOR SUBDIVISION

         25          OF 48 ACRES OF PROPERTY LOCATED AT THE END OF
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          2          MCGUIRE LANE AS SHOWN ON A 3-PAGE SET OF DRAWINGS

                     ENTITLED "5-LOT ALTERNATE, LAKEVIEW ESTATES"

          3          PREPARED BY RALPH G. MASTROMONACO, P.E. RECEIVED

                     NOVEMBER 22, 2006.

          4                 MS. TODD:   Mr. Chairman, I recuse myself.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Miss Todd, thank you.  We

          5          did receive a letter from the applicant requesting

                     that they would like a 4-month extension, it's a

          6          letter dated October 2nd, 4-month extension of the

                     SEQRA time frame.  Mr. Bernard?

          7                 MR. BERNARD:   Mr. Chairman, I move we accede

                     to the applicant's request and to adjourn this

          8          application to our February meeting, February of '08

                     meeting.

          9                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Thank you.  Second,

                     please?

         10                 MR. BIANCHI:   Second.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   On the question.  All in

         11          favor?

                            (Board in favor)

         12                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Opposed.  Next item under

                     old business.  APPLICATION OF DR. MARK HITTMAN FOR

         13          SITE DEVELOPMENT PLAN APPROVAL AND A SPECIAL PERMIT

                     FOR A MEDICAL OFFICE LOCATED WITHIN 1,000 FEET OF

         14          THE HUDSON VALLEY HOSPITAL CENTER FOR THE

                     CONTINUATION OF THE EXISTING MEDICAL PRACTICE AT

         15          1989 CROMPOND ROAD AND FOR AN APPROXIMATELY 170

                     SQUARE FOOT ADDITION TO THE EXISTING BUILDING AS

         16          SHOWN ON A 7-PAGE SET OF DRAWINGS ENTITLED "SITE

                     PLAN, RECEPTION ADDITION DR. MARK HITTMAN" PREPARED

         17          BY BERNARD E. PFEIFFER, P.E., LATEST REVISION DATED

                     AUGUST 24, 2007.  This board had a site visit of the

         18          profit -- (interrupted)

                            MR. FOLEY:   Mr. Chairman, I have to recuse

         19          myself for this, but someone please call me back in.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   We had a site visit of

         20          this application this past Sunday.  This is pretty

                     straightforward so we will set a public hearing for

         21          this for the next meeting.  Mr. Bianchi?

                            MR. BIANCHI:   Mr. Chairman, I move we

         22          schedule a public hearing for November for this

                     application.

         23                 MR. KLINE:   Second.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   On the question.  All in

         24          favor?

                            (Board in favor)

         25                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Opposed?
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          2                 MR. ZUTT:  No comments, questions we need to

                     be aware of?

          3                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Absolutely not.

                     APPLICATION OF LUIS & CARLA FERREIRA FOR FINAL PLAT

          4          APPROVAL FOR A 2-LOT MINOR SUBDIVISION OF A 2.7 ACRE

                     PARCEL LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF RED MILL ROAD,

          5          APPROXIMATELY 500 FEET WEST OF McARTHUR BOULEVARD,

                     AS SHOWN ON A 2-PAGE SET OF DRAWINGS ENTITLED

          6          "INTEGRATED PLOT PLAN, LUIS AND CARLA FERREIRA

                     SUBDIVISION" PREPARED BY JOSEPH F. SULLIVAN, P.E.,

          7          LATEST REVISION DATED JULY 25, 2007 AND ON A FINAL

                     PLATEN ENTITLED "FINAL SUBDIVISION OF PROPERTY

          8          PREPARED FOR LUIS FERREIRA AND CARLA FERREIRA"

                     PREPARED BY DANIEL MERRITTS, LATEST REVISION DATED

          9          AUGUST 12007.  Mr. Kline?

                            MR. KLINE:   Mr. Chairman, I move that we

         10          prepare an approving resolution for our November

                     meeting for this.

         11                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Second?

                            MR. BIANCHI:   Second.

         12                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   On the question.

                            MR. FOLEY:   On the question.  I asked at the

         13          work session on your site plan, Mr. Ferreira, your

                     4-bedroom house.  It's no more than 35 feet high

         14          obviously, but is this house going to overshadow in

                     any way the house on McArthur Boulevard, the family

         15          that came and spoke at the hearings?

                            MR. FERREIRA:   I don't know.

         16                 MR. VERGANO:   Maybe I can help you with

                     that.  Whatever you propose has to comply with our

         17          criteria or code.  The height of the house, the size

                     of the house, again that's all spelled out, building

         18          coverage and what have you, that's spelled out in

                     our code.  It's really up to the town when a

         19          building application is made to make sure that

                     everything complies with our code.

         20                 MR. FOLEY:   I know you are on the slope

                     where you are going to build, so that will be a

         21          downhill section.  Just be very aware if you go

                     above that 35 feet that has been a real sticky issue

         22          in this area with really large homes.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   On the question.  All in

         23          favor?

                            (Board in favor)

         24                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Opposed?  Last item under

                     old business.  APPLICATION OF FRANCIS AND SAKKIO

         25          PARR FOR FINAL PLAT APPROVAL FOR A 2-LOT MAJOR
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          2          SUBDIVISION OF A 20.06 ACRE PARCEL OF PROPERTY WITH

                     NO NEW BUILDING LOTS CREATED FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT

          3          145 TEATOWN ROAD AS SHOWN ON A DRAWING ENTITLED

                     "FINAL SUBDIVISION PLAT PREPARED FOR 145 TEATOWN

          4          ROAD" PREPARED BY CHARLES H. SELLS, INC. DATED

                     SEPTEMBER 5, 2007.  Miss Taylor?

          5                 MS. TAYLOR:   Mr. Chairman, I move we prepare

                     an approving resolution for the November 7th

          6          meeting.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Second?

          7                 MR. KLINE:   Second.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   On the question.  All in

          8          favor?

                            (Board in favor)

          9                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Opposed?  Onto

                     correspondence.  LETTER DATED SEPTEMBER 12, 2007

         10          FROM KEITH STAUDOHAR REQUESTING THE FIRST, SIX-MONTH

                     TIME EXTENSION OF PRELIMINARY PLAT APPROVAL FOR THE

         11          37 CROTON DAM ROAD CORP. SUBDIVISION LOCATED ON

                     WALTER HENNING DRIVE.  Miss Todd?

         12                 MS. TODD:   Mr. Chairman, I make a motion

                     that we approve Resolution Number 48-07.

         13                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Second, please?

                            MS. TAYLOR:   Second.

         14                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   On the question.  All in

                     favor?

         15                 (Board in favor)

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Opposed?  LETTER DATED

         16          SEPTEMBER 14, 2007 FROM GABRIELLE SALMAN, AIA,

                     REQUESTING PLANNING BOARD APPROVAL FOR AN OUTDOOR

         17          BAR AREA LOCATED IN THE BACK OF LA CUNA BAR LOCATED

                     AT 3144 EAST MAIN STREET (ROUTE 6).  Mr. Foley?

         18                 MR. FOLEY:   Mr. Chairman, I make a motion

                     that we recommend that this go to code enforcement.

         19                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Second, please?

                            MR. KLINE:   Second.

         20                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   On the question.

                            MR. FOLEY:   For an inspection and report.

         21                 MR. KLINE:   I second that too.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   On the question.  All in

         22          favor?

                            (Board in favor)

         23                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Opposed?  LETTER DATED

                     SEPTEMBER 15, 2007 FROM LINDA B. WHITEHEAD, ESQ.,

         24          REQUESTING THE FIRST, SIX-MONTH TIME EXTENSION OF

                     PRELIMINARY PLAT APPROVAL FOR THE FURNACE DOCK, INC.

         25          SUBDIVISION LOCATED ON FURNACE DOCK ROAD.  Mr.
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          2          Bernard?

                            MR. BERNARD:   Mr. Chairman, I move that we

          3          approve Resolution 49-07 granting the extension.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Second, please?

          4                 MR. BIANCHI:   Second.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   On the question.  All in

          5          favor?

                            (Board in favor)

          6                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Opposed?  LETTER DATED

                     AUGUST 27, 2007 FROM JOEL GREENBERG, R.A.,

          7          REQUESTING THE THIRD, 90-DAY REAPPROVAL OF THE FINAL

                     PLAT FOR THE APIAN WAY SUBDIVISION LOCATED ON FAWN

          8          RIDGE COURT.  Mr. Bianchi?

                            MR. BIANCHI:   Mr. Chairman, I'll move we

          9          adopt Resolution 50-07 approving the application

                     request.

         10                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Second, please?

                            MR. BERNARD:   Second.

         11                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   On the question.  All in

                     favor?

         12                 (Board in favor)

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Opposed?  LETTER DATED

         13          SEPTEMBER 12TH, 2007 FROM STEPHEN R. MILLER, L.S.,

                     REQUESTING THAT THE APPLICATION OF SUE ANN & RAYMOND

         14          T. LEVERICH REQUESTING THAT THE APPLICATION BE

                     REMOVED FROM ANY FURTHER REVIEW AND CONSIDERATION.

         15          Mr. Kline?

                            MR. KLINE:   Mr. Chairman, I move we receive

         16          and file this letter.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Second, please?

         17                 MR. BERNARD:   Second.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   On the question.  All in

         18          favor?

                            (Board in favor)

         19                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Opposed?  LETTER DATED

                     SEPTEMBER 7, 2007 FROM KENNETH GUNSHOR, ESQ., AND

         20          LETTER DATED SEPTEMBER 19TH, 2007 FROM TIM CRONIN,

                     III, P.E., REQUESTING A REAPPROVAL OF RESOLUTION

         21          NUMBER 13-03 TO SATISFY THE CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

                     FOR THE EQUITY ENTERPRISES LLC CONTRACTOR'S YARD

         22          LOCATED AT 2 BAY VIEW ROAD.  Miss Taylor?

                            MS. TAYLOR:   Mr. Chairman, I recommend and

         23          move that we refer this back to code enforcement.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Second, please?

         24                 MR. FOLEY:   Second.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   On the question.  What

         25          will they do?
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          2                 MR. VERSCHOOR:   Their role would be to

                     inspect the site to see that it conforms to the site

          3          plan that was previously granted conditional

                     approval for.  The other issue here is that the

          4          approval for the site plan expired without

                     fulfilling all the conditions and the applicant is

          5          asking that the board re-approve the site plan, but I

                     think we want to hear from code enforcement that

          6          everything is in order on the site, that it complies

                     with the site plan.  I don't know if the applicant

          7          has anything else to add to this.

                            MR. CRONIN:   I think the original resolution

          8          had 13-03, I think there were 5 conditions and 4 of

                     which were addressed.  The one condition that was

          9          not was, I believe, the signatures on the plat by

                     the chairman.  The site is essentially as it was.

         10          There's been some modest changeover in tenants, but

                     other than that, it's still pretty much a

         11          contractor's yard.  We would like -- code

                     enforcement, they have been out there and we

         12          actually have a violation and the violation was we

                     did not have the final approval.  They have been to

         13          the site and didn't issue any other violations that

                     I'm aware of.  If at all possible, assuming we have

         14          a favorable or concurrence of what we are saying

                     from the code enforcement, could we possibly have a

         15          resolution or either we getting a reapproval or

                     retroactively approved time extensions for the next

         16          meeting to save us from coming back in December.  If

                     there are issues out there that the code enforcement

         17          needs us to address or we need to add as other

                     conditions to the resolution, that could certainly

         18          be accommodated.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Okay.  Where are we, on

         19          the question?  Yes, we are on the question.  All in

                     favor?

         20                 (Board in favor)

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Opposed?  LETTER DATED

         21          SEPTEMBER 19, 2007 FROM KEITH STAUDOHAR AND A 3-PAGE

                     SET OF DRAWINGS ENTITLED "SITE DEVELOPMENT PLAN,

         22          HOLIDAY INN EXPRESS" PREPARED BY CRONIN ENGINEERING,

                     P.E., P.C., ALSO DATED SEPTEMBER 21, 2007 REQUESTING

         23          PLANNING BOARD APPROVAL OF THE PROPOSED BUILDING

                     ELEVATIONS FOR A HOLIDAY INN EXPRESS HOTEL LOCATED

         24          ON OLD ALBANY POST ROAD.  Miss Todd?

                            MS. TODD:   Mr. Chairman, I make a motion

         25          that we refer these drawings and the application to
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          2          the Cortlandt Architectural Advisory Council or

                     CAAC.

          3                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Second, please?

                            MR. KLINE:   Second.

          4                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   We will refer this to the

                     Architectural Advisory Committee for their review of

          5          the building elevations and they will report back to

                     us at the next meeting.

          6                 MS. TAYLOR:   May I say something with regard

                     to this particular application?  I have some

          7          specific concerns about the possible landscaping

                     here.  One whole side of a -- in my opinion,

          8          beautiful, interesting and unique vista has been

                     removed for the preparation of this hotel.  When I

          9          looked at the current drawings there's no drawings

                     submitted for landscaping.  I would like the board

         10          to seriously take a look at what is going to

                     hopefully be proposed.  I'd like to see landscaping

         11          along the whole front.  I mean some serious

                     landscaping, not just a bunch ever matchstick trees

         12          in the front.  I think that we owe the community

                     that has to pass through this section something more

         13          than a huge parking lot that they have to look at as

                     they drive past, so I would say this, that we are

         14          looking -- I am looking to see what develops here

                     with respect to plantings and landscaping and

         15          something very attractive for the eye as you pass

                     through this now one-sided vista.

         16                 MS. TODD:   Why don't we also make a motion

                     then for a landscaping plan be submitted to the

         17          planning board.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Tim, do you have a

         18          landscaping plan prepared at this point?

                            MR. LIASKOS:   There was a landscaping plan

         19          submitted on the original plan.  The only changes

                     are from the original plan.  It went from the name

         20          of Wingate to Holiday Inn.  The building is a little

                     lower and it is not as wide.

         21                 MS. TAYLOR:   And further forward?

                            MR. LIASKOS:   And further back.

         22                 MS. TAYLOR:   Okay.

                            MR. LIASKOS:   Away from the main road.

         23                 MS. TAYLOR:   With more parking?

                            MR. LIASKOS:   Excuse me?

         24                 MS. TAYLOR:   With more parking up there or

                     larger expansive parking?

         25                 MR. LIASKOS:   The parking is larger.  That's

          1                        PB 26-97 KEITH STAUDOHAR                 72

          2          assuming we may have bus tours so we can have

                     parking for the buses.  There's also added balconies

          3          in the back of the building and the landscaping, I

                     think, was very satisfactory on the original plan,

          4          however, I want the board to understand that I'm not

                     doing a half-ass job.  We are doing a lead certified

          5          building.  We are going to be the first lead

                     certified building of any franchise.  We will be the

          6          first in New York State, the first of Holiday Inn.

                     Number 6 in the country that was built from scratch.

          7          The first one on this side of the Mississippi like I

                     tell me.

          8                 MR. FOLEY:   Wouldn't you have 2 lead

                     buildings being built on the Peekskill side right

          9          nearby?

                            MR. LIASKOS:   But they are not hotels.

         10          Hotels built from scratch I'll be number 6.  I've

                     worked very hard on it and there's been no shortcuts

         11          since I started.  I had promised you 6 years ago I

                     was going to make a unique property.  The board was

         12          very satisfied with the landscaping.  I wanted to

                     leave it open for Mr. Clemens to comment for the

         13          improvements.  We had submitted a plan about a month

                     and a half ago for Mr. Clemens to review.  There was

         14          the exact same plan with the exception the left and

                     right side was kicking back about 6 feet, I

         15          believe -- I'm sorry, 4 and a half feet.  So instead

                     it being straight forward it was kicking back and

         16          finishing the corners.  I chose to make the building

                     straight to gain some more rooms in the front, like

         17          a room and a half to make the property more unique

                     inside.  Mr. Clemens liked the kickback, but that

         18          wasn't originally on the first plan.  I don't think

                     this will really daily the process.  I was hoping to

         19          be building the footings before the frost.  I can

                     work with Mr. Clemens on the details and definitely

         20          on the color choices.  I basically left that up to

                     him because I basically had a hard time making up my

         21          mind.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   You had mentioned you had

         22          earlier plans with the landscaping.  Clearly the

                     building has changed, Tim.  You might want to dust

         23          off those plans and resubmit the landscaping plans

                     so we can take a look at them.

         24                 MS. TAYLOR:   Are they going to remain the

                     same?

         25                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Well, it's a different
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          2          building.

                            MS. TAYLOR:   Why would we want to look at

          3          the plan -- (interrupted)

                            MR. CRONIN:   The parking area has had some

          4          minus revisions on the building.  As George

                     mentioned, its geometry has changed.  The earlier

          5          plan was a robust plan for landscaping and certainly

                     anything that we propose now will at least be that,

          6          if not more.  It's important that the building of

                     the hotel is going to take 9 months to a year.

          7          George would like to get into the ground this year.

                     Certainly we can work the details of the landscaped

          8          plan with this board and also with the town's

                     landscape consultant, we have no problem with that.

          9          We would really like to be able to move forward at

                     this point so George has an opportunity to get the

         10          building permit.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Architectural will take a

         11          look at that.  We would like to see the landscaped

                     plan.

         12                 MR. CRONIN:   Would we get a resolution for

                     the next meeting and work out the landscape plan in

         13          December, January, February while George hopefully

                     is under construction.  We know where the parking

         14          is.  We know where the parking area is.  We can put

                     as many trees in as the town feels is appropriate

         15          there.

                            MS. TAYLOR:   One other question.  The hotel

         16          rear faces Albany Post Road, am I right, on that?

                     The rear.

         17                 MR. LIASKOS:   Albany Post Road --

                     (interrupted)

         18                 MR. FOLEY:   Around the back.  Albany Post

                     Road.

         19                 MR. VERSCHOOR:   But the front faces the

                     parking lot?

         20                 MR. LIASKOS:   Correct.

                            MS. TAYLOR:   The front of the hotel faces

         21          the parking lot?

                            MR. LIASKOS:   That's correct.

         22                 MS. TAYLOR:   When I looked at your drawings

                     it looked like from the way you drew them you had

         23          like these 2 little arches and they seemed to be --

                     that's the old one, I'm looking at the new one.  It

         24          looked from the way they were drawn on the sketch

                     that they had reversed itself.

         25                 MR. LIASKOS:   No.  That's the prototype.
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          2                 MS. TAYLOR:   This is the new one.  Is this

                     the front or that the front?

          3                 MR. FOLEY:   The front faces the remaining

                     rock cut on Albany Post Road?

          4                 MR. LIASKOS:   That's correct.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Architectural review

          5          will -- (interrupted)

                            MS. TAYLOR:   This is what I meant by -- this

          6          piece here is called the rear elevation.  Do you see

                     this here?  When we look here, this is what we kind

          7          of see, so I'm trying to figure out why this is

                     called the front and the front is looking like

          8          it's -- (interrupted)

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Because that's probably

          9          facing the road.

                            MS. TAYLOR:   Here is one arch here.  Then

         10          there's these 2 cut outs.  There's only one here and

                     then there's 2 -- (interrupted)

         11                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   This is where the parking

                     is in the front and the road.  You have to see the

         12          sign.

                            MS. TAYLOR:   I want to be clear.  Which of

         13          these -- this is called the front with this one cap

                     here.  This is called the front.  There's only one

         14          cap here.  I'm wondering if this is the front and

                     this is the rear?  It's kind of confusing to me.  I

         15          can't figure it out.

                            MR. LIASKOS:   I certainly don't want to be

         16          penalized for making the rear of the building.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Which one of those faces

         17          old Albany Post Road?

                            MR. LIASKOS:   (off microphone conversation)

         18                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   That looks out over the

                     parking lot?

         19                 MR. FOLEY:   No, that is in the back.

                            MS. TAYLOR:   There you go.

         20                 MR. LIASKOS:   This is the parking, this is

                     the building and the parking is in the back.  You

         21          see extending out is the pool and our intention is

                     to put planting on it so the people staying on the

         22          top floors when they look down will be looking at a

                     landscape (inaudible)...

         23                 MS. TAYLOR:   This is what is confusing me.

                     This is one cap here, this there to the left of it,

         24          that little -- on top.  Right there.  There's one

                     cap there.  On your drawing behind this you have --

         25          you show -- flip it up so I can show you, you see
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          2          the one cap up there?  You get one cap and you call

                     that the front.  You have these 2 caps here and you

          3          call that the rear.  When you flip this back down

                     you will see this piece looks like it's facing

          4          Albany Post Road.

                            MR. LIASKOS:   So the back looks as nice as

          5          the front.

                            MS. TAYLOR:   It's not so much it looks as

          6          nice.  I'm trying to figure out where the front

                     positioned on this drawing?

          7                 MR. LIASKOS:   This is the front facing here.

                            MS. TAYLOR:   Do you understand what I'm

          8          looking at?

                            MR. CRONIN:   You are looking at this little

          9          piece right here.  That right there is the far side

                     of the building.

         10                 MS. TAYLOR:   Look at the 2 little pieces on

                     side of it.  Flip it down, you will see what I mean.

         11          When you flip the top sheet down you look at that

                     piece with these little caps there.  See what I'm

         12          saying?  In that area.  It looks like you are

                     looking at the rear of the building.

         13                 (Off microphone conversation)

                            MR. LIASKOS:   That's because the building is

         14          not straight in the front.  It has little bump outs.

                     It's just basically for -- it's kind of the

         15          standard -- (interrupted)

                            (Off microphone conversation)

         16                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Did we make a motion to

                     refer this back?

         17                 MR. KLARL:   We are talking about the

                     landscaping.  No.

         18                 MR. FOLEY:   Can I ask a quick question on

                     the site plan?  The billboards are remaining?  Take

         19          the billboards out and put the moose back up or put

                     a bronze moose.  The billboards are going to stay

         20          there?  It says here existing billboards remain on

                     the site plan.

         21                 MS. TAYLOR:   Does it?

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Are they billboards?

         22                 MR. FOLEY:   They are right there.

                            (Off microphone conversation)

         23                 MR. FOLEY:   One Last question.  You said one

                     last floor?  Still 5 floors but -- (interrupted)

         24                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Let's wait for

                     Architectural Review to look at this before we start

         25          tearing it apart.
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          2                 MR. BERNARD:   On the microphone, George.

                     Get on the microphone so we have you on there,

          3          George.

                            MR. LIASKOS:   Can I get a motion to move

          4          forward subject to working with Mr. Clemens so I

                     don't delay the project?  I have a structural

          5          engineer that is ready to do the final plan and

                     architect to work the final details.

          6                 MS. TAYLOR:   Is the motion that we --

                     suggestion that we actually have a motion on the

          7          floor in the record that says we want a landscaped

                     plan, does that sort of go -- (interrupted)

          8                 MR. LIASKOS:   Absolutely, you can have that.

                     I'm not going to do a shortcut on anything.

          9                 MS. TAYLOR:   Pardon?

                            MR. LIASKOS:   I'm not going to do any

         10          shortcuts.  Putting in a building takes a lot of

                     effort.

         11                 MR. VERGANO:   George, what's your time

                     frame?  You have all the health department

         12          approvals?

                            MR. LIASKOS:   As soon as I'm done everything

         13          is pretty much done.

                            MR. VERGANO:   You have the Certificate of

         14          Completion, everything is done with the health

                     department?

         15                 MR. CRONIN:   We got permission to install.

                            MR. VERGANO:   When do you plan on making an

         16          application for a building permit?

                            MR. LIASKOS:   The structural engineer --

         17          remember when I asked you for a partial permit so we

                     can do the footings?

         18                 MR. VERGANO:   Right.

                            MR. LIASKOS:   I met the contractor today, we

         19          shook hands on the deal.  It's the bank that I have

                     to do the final closing and by the time I wrap these

         20          things up the structural engineer should have the

                     footing plan.  They would like to do it before

         21          frost.  They have no problem putting the building

                     while it is freezing out because we do ICF

         22          construction.

                            MR. VERGANO:   You actually want to start the

         23          building itself before the winter?

                            MR. LIASKOS:   Yes, I hope.  I want to finish

         24          next summer or at least we are going to give it a

                     fair shot to do that.

         25                 MR. VERGANO:   The issue here is the ARC
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          2          still has to take a look at your concept and also

                     the board wants to see a landscape plan.

          3                 MR. LIASKOS:   Absolutely.  As long as you

                     approve the building I have no problem with the

          4          landscape plan.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   I think they go together.

          5                 MR. VERGANO:   Yeah, I was going to say that.

                            MR. LIASKOS:   Would it be okay to say we use

          6          the old landscape plan?  We would like to do

                     improvements on it, but the original plan as it was

          7          approved it was very satisfactory to the board.

                            MS. TODD:   Maybe what we need is a letter

          8          from the Architectural Review Board saying that they

                     are happy with the plans and then also I would be

          9          okay to see the original landscape plan and then

                     work on modifying it.

         10                 MR. KLARL:   Landscaped plan could be the

                     subject of further review.

         11                 MS. TODD:   Right.  If we could get that

                     before the next meeting.

         12                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   I'm not quite clear what

                     we are approving here.

         13                 MS. TAYLOR:   Neither am I.

                            MR. KLINE:   We are not approving anything.

         14                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   We are sending this to

                     Architectural Advisory for their review and then

         15          what?

                            MR. VERGANO:   This is for again -- the

         16          application in front of you is really for approval

                     of the proposed building elevation.  You want to get

         17          comments from the ARC.  George wants to get started

                     as soon as possible.

         18                 MS. TAYLOR:   Why don't we just follow what

                     we normally do.  What is the problem?

         19                 MR. VERGANO:   Right.  That's what I wanted

                     to get an idea of the time frame.

         20                 MS. TAYLOR:   He gets it when we finish our

                     process.  I don't understand why we have to go

         21          there.  They have to look at it.  We want him to

                     submit a landscape plan.  Let's just move on it and

         22          get it done and then he can start.  I don't know why

                     we are having this discussion.

         23                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   What happens after

                     Architectural Review looks at it?

         24                 MR. VERGANO:   They give the thumbs up on it.

                     You guys give the thumbs up on the elevation.

         25                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   They come to you for a
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          2          building permit?

                            MR. VERGANO:   They come to me for a building

          3          permit, exactly.

                            MR. BERNARD:   Isn't that what we are

          4          speaking to tonight is this letter requesting

                     planning board approval of the building elevations

          5          which we are going to have Architectural Review

                     approve or disapprove?

          6                 MR. VERGANO:   Right.

                            MR. BERNARD:   Can't we approve this based on

          7          Architectural Review's agreement?

                            MR. VERGANO:   You can do that, sure.

          8                 MR. BERNARD:   Isn't that what we normally

                     do?

          9                 MR. VERGANO:   Sometimes, yes.

                            MR. BERNARD:   Does staff think we should

         10          hold onto this?

                            MR. KLARL:   The landscape, Bob, can still

         11          come back before us.

                            MS. TAYLOR:   If they start setting footings

         12          in and that's going to affect other things in terms

                     of the front of the building or how much parking, to

         13          some extent depending on the kind of landscaping it

                     may affect parking.  One thing sort of could have a

         14          domino effect on the other.  We will settle for

                     whatever ends up being landscaping because they

         15          started doing this, that or the other.  We have done

                     that before on the board.  I don't understand why we

         16          just haven't -- (interrupted)

                            MR. VERGANO:   I tend to agree with you,

         17          Loretta.  I suppose in a perfect world they could

                     give a foundation permit, but you're right, there

         18          could be some issue with the ARC that could

                     potentially affect the foundation so why not just do

         19          everything together.

                            MS. TAYLOR:   Do it the right way.  It's not

         20          going to take that long.  I think we should go

                     through the process.  We waited 6 years to get to

         21          this point.

                            MR. LIASKOS:   You waited 6 years, I've been

         22          working for 6 years.

                            MS. TAYLOR:   We gave you approval, longer

         23          than that if you talk from the beginning.  The

                     bottom line it's taken as long as it's taken to get

         24          to this point.  We can wait another 3 or 4 weeks or

                     whatever and move the process along as quickly as we

         25          can.  I'm sure you won't have to wait 6 years to get
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          2          a response from us.  It will be a few weeks, but I

                     think we should follow the process.

          3                 MR. LIASKOS:   Do you recall when the first

                     approval was, do you recall your not being satisfied

          4          with the landscaping plan?

                            MS. TAYLOR:   I don't recall anything.  I

          5          know that you have a different situation, slightly

                     different situation than when we started.  What I

          6          would like to see is some sense of exactly where we

                     are going with the front of this that faces the

          7          road.  We have been doing this, you know, for pretty

                     much every application that fronts the road lately

          8          and I don't think why it should be any different

                     now.

          9                 MR. LIASKOS:   That is the original site

                     plan.

         10                 (Off microphone conversation)

                            MS. TAYLOR:   I don't know that everybody

         11          was, but again, I think the strip is too narrow.

                     The landscaping there on the front is too narrow.

         12          I'd think I would like it to be deeper and a little

                     more lush.  We have shrubs or trees or what, what is

         13          that?

                            (Off microphone conversation)

         14                 MR. VERGANO:   Again, I have to see a

                     landscape plan.  Presumably nothing is in that site

         15          triangle.

                            (Off microphone conversation)

         16                 MS. TAYLOR:   I would like a fairly lush,

                     nice looking landscaping strip along there, because

         17          I think that we have lost something.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   All right, we are going

         18          around and around here.

                            MS. TAYLOR:   We go around and around a lot.

         19                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Let's stop going around

                     and around and let's be very clear.  You are going

         20          to go to Architectural Review.  Tim, it looks like

                     the board would like to have a landscape plan that

         21          reflects the current state of the building.  If that

                     means redoing the building drawing and picking up

         22          the landscape plan that you had the last time, fine,

                     whatever you want to do, but bring back to this

         23          board a landscape plan.

                            MR. KLINE:   Personally I'm okay, if this can

         24          get through Architectural Review for the approval of

                     the appearance of the elevation subject to us later

         25          approving a landscape plan.
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          2                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   All I'm saying is we need

                     a landscaping plan.

          3                 MR. CRONIN:   You can submit a landscaping

                     plan, but we would like to have a conditioned

          4          approval by this board subject to the architectural

                     board's review and approval to allow the footings to

          5          get started this year and the landscape plan, we

                     will put as many trees as we can fit into these

          6          areas in accordance with what the town's consultants

                     agrees appropriate.

          7                 MR. KLARL:   On the record, subject to a

                     further review by this board as the landscape plan.

          8                 MR. KLINE:   Can't we just condition a CO on

                     their being a further approved landscape plan?

          9                 MS. TAYLOR:   You are probably not interested

                     in seeing it, but I am.

         10                 MR. KLINE:   It's not a question of not being

                     interested in seeing it.  It sounds logical to me

         11          that the appearance of the building is one issue and

                     the landscaping is a second issue in that we could

         12          approve the appearance of a building at one point

                     and approve the landscaping thereafter.

         13                 MS. TAYLOR:   What is thereafter in your

                     mind?  How far thereafter would you want to --

         14          (interrupted)

                            MR. KLINE:   Sometime between approving the

         15          appearance of the building and his trying to open

                     the place.

         16                 MS. TAYLOR:   We can talk about it now giving

                     them one thing and they can come back in November or

         17          December and give us a landscaping instead of

                     February, March, April.

         18                 MR. CRONIN:   It will certainly be November.

                     We will work on it as best we can, but November,

         19          December.  Certainly by December, but hopefully

                     November.  We are certainly looking to get a plan to

         20          the board so we can get comments and hopefully

                     approval.

         21                 MR. LIASKOS:   This takes a lot of effort.

                            (Off microphone conversation)

         22                 MS. TAYLOR:   We didn't ask you to do the

                     landscaping.  We just asked you to look at it.  We

         23          didn't ask you to do it.

                            (Off microphone conversation)

         24                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Could I have a motion,

                     please?

         25                 MS. TODD:   I'll make a motion that we refer
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          2          the plans to Architectural Review for their feedback

                     to us and that we request the applicant to give us a

          3          landscaping plan that is up to date and suited to

                     the layout of the new site plan.

          4                 MR. KLARL:   You want it by the December

                     meeting?

          5                 MS. TODD:   As soon as possible for the

                     November or December meeting.

          6                 MR. CRONIN:   With the resolution that's

                     adopted next month, assuming one is, a condition

          7          could be that a landscape plan has to be approved by

                     this board.

          8                 MR. FOLEY:   More enhanced landscape.

                            MS. TODD:   The motion we request is we get a

          9          more enhanced landscaped plan by the November or

                     December meeting.

         10                 MS. TAYLOR:   I'm serious about the fact that

                     I see a strip.  I'd like to see this landscaping be

         11          dealt where a little more -- a little differently.

                     I'd like to see more depth to this landscape plan.

         12                 MS. TODD:   She is talking about a more

                     modulated area.

         13                 MS. TAYLOR:   It's directly across from a

                     major -- (interrupted)

         14                 MS. TODD:   I think hedge row.

                            MS. TAYLOR:   So we have a little skinny --

         15          (interrupted)

                            MR. LIASKOS:   When you see, you have 2 lanes

         16          coming in and 2 lanes going out.  The architect had

                     criticized me for overdoing the egress of the

         17          building, like I was building the Taj Mahal.

                            MS. TAYLOR:   People in commerce, the less

         18          trees they have or fewer trees they have the better,

                     but again, there is a sort of aesthetic that we want

         19          to keep in that part of the town.  Just because this

                     is a major traffic road doesn't mean that we want to

         20          give up everything that is nice and pretty.

                            MR. LIASKOS:   We are not giving up nothing.

         21                 MS. TAYLOR:   No, we are.  We gave up the

                     side of that other part of the rock cut.

         22                 MR. LIASKOS:   For the record, I'm going to

                     make a statement for the record.  To stabilize the

         23          size of the rock cut in 1990 the county spent a

                     million dollars and this thing is going to happen

         24          again.  The town owns the road.  It's estimated at

                     $5 million expense to stabilize the loose rock.

         25          That is going to get worse.  I took the liability.
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          2                 MS. TAYLOR:   I'm sorry for that.

                            MR. LIASKOS:   Your welcome.

          3                 MR. FOLEY:    In other words, there would be

                     a more enhanced aesthetically pleasing landscaped

          4          plan and we would see that.

                            MR. LIASKOS:   So I cannot move on with

          5          structural?

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   We didn't say that.

          6          Architectural Review is going to review the

                     elevations.  They are going to approve it.

          7          Presumably if everyone is comfortable on the board,

                     if Architectural Review says it's okay, then they

          8          will come to you for a building permit.  Concurrent

                     with that, you will give us within the next 2 to 3

          9          months, preferably 2, a landscape plan --

                     (interrupted)

         10                 MS. TAYLOR:   Can we ask for a specific date?

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   For the December meeting,

         11          we ask for a landscape plan which we can look at and

                     decide if we think it needs enhancement.

         12                 MR. LIASKOS:   And I'll make sure you are

                     happy.

         13                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Good.

                            MR. LIASKOS:   I will impress you.  We are

         14          trying to do an exceptional job all the way around

                     and the lead certification effort that I had put on

         15          that building is really outstanding.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   That's the motion?

         16          That's the motion; right?

                            MS. TODD:   I think that was it.

         17                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Second?

                            MR. BIANCHI:   Second.

         18                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   On the question.

                            MR. BERNARD:   On the question.  Can he

         19          proceed with his footings now?

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   He can't proceed with the

         20          footings unless Architectural Review says it's okay

                     and he gets a building permit.

         21                 MR. KLINE:   The question is does he have to

                     come back to us in November?

         22                 MR. VERGANO:   I'm missing something here.

                     Why can't you proceed when you have your engineer

         23          and architects proceed with a foundation design

                     right now?  It's going to take him a month to

         24          prepare design plans, it's going to take us some

                     time to review it.  I just don't see the time frame

         25          as being realistic.  You can't get footings in

          1                        PB 26-97 KEITH STAUDOHAR                 83

          2          before the frost.  Again, that seems highly

                     unlikely.

          3                 MR. LIASKOS:   Ed, I spent a lot of money.

                     For me to release structural and then come over here

          4          and have been asked to change things and have to

                     reduce structural, then I'm going bust.  I'll do

          5          what you want landscaping.  I make sure you are

                     satisfied.  I haven't disappointed anybody.  If I

          6          wanted to do a quick fix I would have put a wood

                     structure, minimum standards and I would have been

          7          opened already.  I'm stubborn, they told me.

                            MR. BERNARD:   George, don't shoot yourself

          8          in the foot.  Please, give us a moment here.  What

                     we are asking, what we are trying to do is allow you

          9          to go ahead with the footings, but if the town

                     engineer thinks that we ought to study this a bit

         10          more, then that's what we should do.

                            MR. VERGANO:   I don't know why we are

         11          talking about December.  Why can't you get this

                     information back to us, the landscaping comments

         12          from the ARC, they are very expeditious, by the

                     November 7th meeting, we are only talking a month.

         13                 MR. LIASKOS:   I have no problem.  I just

                     wanted a release on the building so I could start

         14          structural.  That's all I'm asking.

                            MR. FOLEY:   It's going to be a warm winter

         15          there, won't be any frost.

                            MR. VERGANO:   The problem with that is

         16          there's a chance that the Architectural Review may

                     have a comment that could affect the structural.

         17                 MR. LIASKOS:   We won't do it until I get

                     okay from the Architectural Review Board,

         18          absolutely.  I get the okay, I deliver it to you and

                     then I go to structural.  I still owe you a

         19          landscaping plan to your satisfaction.  It's clear.

                     I have it clear with Architectural and then there's

         20          the landscaping.

                            MR. BERNARD:   Why is this coming to us at

         21          this late date if frost is so critical?

                            MR. BIANCHI:   The point is he's not ready

         22          for footings.  If you don't have structural drawings

                     you can't put footings in, so what is the rush?

         23                 MR. LIASKOS:   That's correct.  I need to

                     release structural designs now.

         24                 MR. BIANCHI:   You can release it.  Release

                     it.  Take a chance.

         25                 MR. LIASKOS:   I can't take a chance.
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          2                 MR. BIANCHI:   Take a chance.  You can take a

                     chance.

          3                 MR. VERGANO:    So you want us to take the

                     chance then?  It doesn't make any sense.

          4                 MR. LIASKOS:   You aren't taking a chance.

                            MR. VERGANO:   We are taking a chance.  If we

          5          give an approval to start with the foundation and

                     the Architectural Review Committee comes back and

          6          wants something different, we give you the approval

                     to start with the foundation.

          7                 MR. LIASKOS:   I will get the architectural

                     approval first before I do anything else.  Before I

          8          release structural.  I just don't want to have to

                     come over here one more time except for the

          9          landscaping.

                            MR. VERGANO:   If that's understood, then I'm

         10          okay with that.  I can live with that.  If it's an

                     approval subject to the ARC then if that's what is

         11          going to get George started with his engineers on

                     the foundation, I don't think we are taking much of

         12          a chance.  I think that's fine.

                            MR. BERNARD:   I agree.

         13                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   So is that still the

                     motion?

         14                 MR. BIANCHI:   We have a second already.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   On the question.  All in

         15          favor?

                            (Board in favor)

         16                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Opposed?  I have no idea

                     what we agreed on.  LETTER DATED SEPTEMBER 20, 2007

         17          FROM MARK J. GILLIS REQUESTING PLANNING BOARD

                     APPROVAL FOR A NEW SIGN FOR GIL'S GRILLS LOCATED AT

         18          2115 ALBANY POST ROAD.  Mr. Foley?

                            MR. FOLEY:   Mr. Chairman, I make a motion we

         19          approve this subject to code enforcement.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Second?

         20                 MR. BERNARD:   Second.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   On the question.  All in

         21          favor?

                            (Board in favor)

         22                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Opposed?  We had 2

                     additional items on the agenda.  First item is a

         23          letter dated September 28th, 2007 from Geraldine

                     Tortorella regarding PB 25-93, Rocco Triglia, Round

         24          Top at Montrose requesting the 14th time extension

                     on the preliminary plat.  John.

         25                 MR. BERNARD:   Mr. Chairman, with some
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          2          reservation, I move we approve Resolution 51-07

                     granting the extension.

          3                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Second, please?

                            MR. BIANCHI:   Second.

          4                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   On the question.  All in

                     favor?

          5                 (Board in favor)

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Opposed?  Next and final

          6          addition to the agenda is a letter dated September

                     28th, 2007 from William Zutt regarding Monteverde,

          7          PB 42-06.  Mr. Bianchi?

                            MR. BIANCHI:   Mr. Chairman, I move we

          8          receive and file the letter.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Second?

          9                 MR. BERNARD:   Second.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   On the question.  All in

         10          favor?

                            (Board in favor)

         11                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Opposed?

                            MR. ZUTT:   Mr. Chairman, I would like to

         12          make a request, essentially repeating what I asked

                     at the last meeting.  As you know, this letter

         13          concerns a petition to rezone.  You were given this

                     evening, I imagine, a memorandum from Mr. Wood which

         14          in substance says that the town board need not by

                     law entertain the petition and I believe he offers

         15          fundamentally the same advice to your board,

                     recommends that you suspend or abandon your SEQRA

         16          review.  In respect to Mr. Wood, I believe he's

                     wrong, at least as far as your board is concerned

         17          and yours is the only board that I'm concerned with

                     right now.  The SEQRA regulation are pretty clear

         18          and explicit.  Ken Verschoor knows them very, very

                     well.  You are required to make a determination of

         19          significance as lead agency within 20 days after

                     your lead agency status has been established.  That

         20          took place about 3 or 4 months ago at the very

                     least.  I called upon you to do that at the last

         21          meeting.  I repeat my request now.  Obviously I'm

                     powerless to force you to do anything at all.

         22          That's our position and request.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   I don't know what

         23          recourse you have, Bill.  Clearly the town attorney

                     is telling us we don't have an obligation to act on

         24          this and that is his recommendation, so we are going

                     by his recommendation.  I would imagine that you do

         25          have some recourse to have that position.
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          2                 MR. ZUTT:   I understand.  I fully

                     understand.  I just needed to make a little record

          3          here.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Onto new business.

          4          APPLICATION OF HILTON NURSERIES LLC FOR THE PROPERTY

                     OF RICHARD ALBERT FOR SITE DEVELOPMENT PLAN APPROVAL

          5          FOR A NURSERY, FARM MARKET AND APARTMENTS ON A 2.7

                     ACRE PARCEL OF PROPERTY LOCATED ON THE WEST SIDE OF

          6          ROUTE 9A, NORTHWEST OF THE ROUTE 9 SOUTHBOUND ENTRY

                     RAMP AS SHOWN ON A 2-PAGE SETS OF DRAWINGS ENTITLED

          7          "PROPOSED SITE PLAN, HILL TOP NURSERIES, LLC"

                     PREPARED BY EDMOND GEMMOLA, R.A., DATED SEPTEMBER

          8          21, 2007 (SEE PRIOR PB'S 24-03, 6-05, 3-07).

                            MR. PANESSA:   Good evening.

          9                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   We will refer this back

                     to staff for them to issue a review memorandum.

         10          Once that memorandum is responded to by the

                     applicant we will then bring this back on the agenda

         11          and presumably schedule a public hearing at some

                     point.

         12                 MR. PANESSA:   What kind of timing do we have

                     on that?  Is this likely it will be back in front of

         13          the planning board in November?

                            MR. VERGANO:   No.

         14                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   I would probably say

                     December is more likely.  The memoranda will get

         15          issued within the next few weeks.

                            MR. VERGANO:   It will take some time to

         16          respond to all the comments, so December is probably

                     more realistic.

         17                 MR. PANESSA:   Thank you.

                            MR. BERNARD:   Mr. Chairman, I move we refer

         18          this application back to staff.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Second, please?

         19                 MR. KLINE:   Second.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   On the question.  All in

         20          favor?

                            (Board in favor)

         21                 CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Opposed?  Final item of

                     the evening.  APPLICATION OF PIKE PLAZA ASSOCIATES,

         22          LLC FOR SITE DEVELOPMENT PLAN APPROVAL AND A CHANGE

                     OF USE FOR A PROPOSED CHILDREN OF AMERICA CHILD

         23          CARE CENTER AND A PROPOSED OUTDOOR PLAYGROUND TO BE

                     LOCATED IN THE EXISTING PIKE PLAZA SHOPPING CENTER

         24          AT 2050 EAST MAIN STREET (ROUTE 6) AS SHOWN ON A

                     4-PAGE SET OF DRAWINGS ENTITLED "CHILDREN OF AMERICA

         25          PROPOSED CHILD CARE CENTER" PREPARED BY LOTHROP
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          2          ASSOCIATES, DATED SEPTEMBER 21, 2007 (SEE PRIOR PB's

                     30-95, 14-96).  Mr. Zutt, good evening, again.

          3                 MR. ZUTT:   Good evening, Mr. Chairman.  It

                     occurred to me as I walked up I've been involved 22

          4          years with this property one way or another.

                     Counsel to the planning board or several previous

          5          owners.  With me tonight is Art Seckler from Lothrop

                     Associates, the project architect, and Lloyd Amster

          6          who's with the management company.  What is proposed

                     actually is a change in tenancy in part of the upper

          7          building.  Those of you familiar with the property,

                     there's a lower and upper building.  The upper

          8          building is most distant from Route 6.  What is

                     proposed is an approximate 10,000 square foot day

          9          care center, or child care center more

                     appropriately, along with a 2,500 square foot

         10          outdoor play area.  Right now there's approximately

                     8,700 square feet of vacant space in the yellow area

         11          shown on this site plan.  We anticipate by

                     reorganizing some of the additional space in that

         12          same building we may pick up 500 to 1,500 additional

                     square feet, so we may be asking for as much as

         13          10,000 square feet to be devoted to this use.  We

                     anticipate accommodating approximately 120 children

         14          on a daily basis.  We will have to relocate, I

                     think, 7 parking spaces unless I'm mistaken which

         15          will be taken up by the outdoor play area.  Most of

                     the traffic we anticipate would arrive outside of

         16          the normal rush hour because these facilities are

                     populated from the early morning 7 to 8 a.m. time

         17          frame to 6 to 7 p.m. time frame, drop off and pick

                     up, so we don't anticipate any traffic problems.

         18          There would be no change in the building design.

                     The exterior appearance would remain pretty much as

         19          is except for the outdoor play area.

                                  CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   As with the

         20          previous application, we will refer this back to

                     staff for their review and we will schedule a

         21          meeting.  Can I have a motion, please?

                            MR. BIANCHI:   Mr. Chairman, I move we refer

         22          this back to staff.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Second?

         23                 MS. TODD:   Second.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   On the question.  All in

         24          favor?

                            (Board in favor)

         25                 MR. ZUTT:   We have an interested tenant here
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          2          for whom time is of the essence, so if staff could

                     generate a review memo to us in time for us to

          3          respond for the next meeting.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   All right.  Mr. Kline?

          4                 MR. KLINE:   I move we adjourn.

                            CHAIRMAN KESSLER:   Thank you.  11:27.
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